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MAKING AN 
IMPACT

Photo taken at New City in Chicago, IL, a J for Jobs project.  
Construction was completed in 2016 and loan repaid in full.
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From its beginning, Ullico set out to make lasting impacts. At a time 

when the business environment was unfavorable to unions, the company 

was founded to provide financial security to the labor movement’s 

members and their families. By providing necessary insurance, The 

Union Labor Life Insurance Company helped create a new level of 

stability for workers and improved the standard of living for millions 

of Americans. 

Staying true to its mission, Ullico developed new products and solutions over time, each 

tailored to the needs of the labor market and designed to make a positive impact on 

hardworking Americans. 

To this day, Ullico continues adapting to the challenges presented by a changing business 

environment. As the movement evolves, the company continues to respond. 

Some recent accomplishments include:

• Launched Ullico’s J for Jobs Collective Investment Fund,  
allowing 401(k) plans to participate in Separate Account J

• The Ullico Infrastructure Fund has invested over $500 million and has received over 
$1 billion in investor commitments since inception

• Highest ever Professional Liability direct written premium volume

• Attained $200 million of Life & Health annual premium

Making an Impact



REPORTED 

$15.2 million 
in pretax operating income

REPORTED 

$219.6 million 
in revenue (net earned premiums plus fee income)

REPORTED BOOK VALUE PER SHARE OF 

$16.46 
an increase of 7.4% over the prior year
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IMPACT 
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Photo courtesy of the International Brotherhood of Boilermakers
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Life & Health
Ullico’s Life & Health division, which offers insurance products 

through The Union Labor Life Insurance Company (Union Labor 

Life), continued to make good on its commitment to offer insurance 

protection designed for the needs of labor.

In 2017, Life & Health continued to grow during the year by producing a record in 

new premium dollars while renewing 95.6% of all its business.

Life & Health continued to be a leader in covering union members for life and/or 

accidental death insurance with over 2 million members covered.  During the year Life 

& Health retained 99% of its group life and/or accidental death coverage customers 

and had a record sales year for new group life premium.  The division provided 

quick and timely claims service, paying over 9,300 life and accidental death and 

dismemberment claims during the year.

Life & Health also maintained its leadership role in providing medical stop loss 

coverage to health and welfare funds in the union marketplace. Union Labor Life offers 

a unique stop loss program design that is endorsed by seven international unions that 

allow health and welfare funds to earn dividends based on annual premium and/or 

favorable claim experience. Since 2014, Union Labor Life has paid $11 million in 

dividends to participating health and welfare funds in these stop loss programs.
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RECORD SALES OF 

$30 million 
(Combined Group Life & Stop Loss)

ATTAINED 

$200 million 
in Life & Health annual premium

CURRENTLY 

35 clients 
with more than 50 years with Union Labor Life

PAID OVER 

$11 million
in dividends for Stop Loss since 2014

IMPACT 
AT-A-GLANCE

Photo taken at Hill 7 in Seattle, WA, a J for Jobs Project.   
Construction completed in 2016 and the loan was repaid in full.
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Property & Casualty
Ullico’s Property & Casualty division, Ullico Casualty Group, LLC 

(UCG) demonstrated its unmatched commitment to safeguarding 

unions, their leaders and their trust funds from personal liability. 

By creating and updating coverages as exposures evolved, UCG’s 

expert underwriters and claims professionals helped protect its 

policyholders. 

Professional liability premiums reached a record $56.8 million, with 95% of 

policies renewing. UCG produced $3.9 million in new professional liability business 

due to its solid reputation, strong policy management and its partnerships with 

independent brokers.

 

UCG continued to build its Commercial and Cyber Liability programs to generate fee 

income and provide vital insurance products for the union workplace.

 

The industry experts in UCG enhanced their focus on an educational and risk 

management tool for the marketplace.  They promoted a new service for policyholders 

called Ullico Resource Center as a risk mitigation service to policyholders, published 

thought leadership articles on topics such as training fund insurance needs, and 

spoke on topics such as cyber liability for unions.
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Grew professional liability premium 
volumes 30% since 2011.

UCG increased its Commercial, Cyber, 
and ancillary product fee income by  
24% over 2016.

The business unit more than doubled its 
Cyber Liability policy count.

Tina Fletcher was promoted to President  
of UCG.

IMPACT 
AT-A-GLANCE

Photo courtesy of The International Association of Bridge, Structural, 
Ornamental and Reinforcing Iron Workers Union, AFL-CIO
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Investment Services

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT GROUP (REIG)
Union Labor Life’s real estate debt products, including its flagship Separate Account J (J For 
Jobs), have provided over $16 billion in loan financings for more than 500 projects since 
inception. In 2017, the products committed to more than $923 million in project financings 
of which $738 million was closed and $185 million is scheduled to close in 2018. Projections 
indicate that construction financed by these loans will generate significant economic activity, 
including the creation of approximately 3,400 full time jobs, 6.8 million working hours and over 
$495 million of personal income for union workers. Also during the year, Investment Services 
launched the Ullico J for Jobs Collective Investment Fund, allowing 401(K) plans to participate in 
Separate Account J.

Ullico’s real estate debt products are managed within Union Labor Life by the Real Estate 
Investment Group. It ended the calendar year with approximately $3.1 billion in AUM. 

INFRASTRUCTURE FUND (UIF)
The Ullico Infrastructure Fund finished calendar year 2017 with $537 million in AUM.  
The portfolio consisted of eight completed transactions covering 62 assets throughout  
the nation. These assets include infrastructure businesses providing wind, solar, hydro and  
natural gas energy generation, electricity transmission and water and wastewater distribution  
and treatment. Creation of over 1500 union construction jobs is estimated.

Responding to investment needs for the nation’s infrastructure, UIF was established in 2010 
to assist in the construction, maintenance and refurbishment of America’s infrastructure. Since 
its creation, UIF has experienced significant growth in its AUM, its deal opportunity pipeline, 
and investor interest. UIF currently has in excess of $1 billion in investor commitments. UIF’s 
objectives are to provide investors with appropriate risk adjusted returns, promote the creation  
of union jobs, and contribute to economic growth in the nation’s communities.

Ullico’s Investment Services division offers investment products and services 
specifically designed for the union marketplace and their benefit plans. Our 
signature real-estate and infrastructure products offer investors the opportunity 
to earn appropriate risk-adjusted returns while promoting union job creation.

During calendar year 2017, Ullico’s Investment Services increased its assets 
under management (AUM) by approximately $525 million to reach $4.79 billion. 
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Separate Accounts J is offered through a group annuity contract issued by The Union Labor Life Insurance Company (Union Labor Life) and is sold through Ullico Invest-
ment Company, Inc. (Member FINRA/SIPC), both subsidiaries of Ullico Inc. The Accounts will only be offered to qualified institutional and accredited investors. Investment 
in illiquid real estate and commercial mortgage loans are subject to additional risks including the potential inability of an investor to redeem units. The investment return 
and principal value of the Fund will fluctuate so that an investor’s units, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than original cost. In addition, fluctuations in interest 
rates and market volatility may limit available financing for real estate investments held by the Fund, thereby adversely affecting the value of the underlying investments, 
the investment return and the liquidity of the investments. Furthermore, the loan values determined by Union Labor Life could vary significantly from the prices at which 
the investments would sell because market prices can only be determined by negotiation between a willing buyer and seller. The ability of borrowers to repay loans issued 
by the Fund will typically depend upon the successful construction or operation of the related real estate project and the availability of financing. The repayment of loans 
issued for the construction of multifamily housing (i.e condominium loans) will generally depend on the borrower’s ability to sell the underlying housing units. There is 
no guaranteed that Union Labor Life will attain its investment objectives. Potential investors in the Fund should carefully read the Fund Disclosure Memorandum for a 
description of the potential risks associated with investment in the Fund.

Economic Impact: Direct union impact figures provided by an economic impact study performed by Pinnacle Economics through input-output analysis utilizing IMPLAN 
modeling software. The study was performed using estimated project costs and union prevailing wage data from state departments of labor as provided by Ullico 
Investment Advisors, Inc.  Jobs, Hours of Work and FTE figures reflect totals over the life of the project. All construction impacts are temporary in nature, and unfold as 
construction spending unfolds. This is an illustration of the projected economic impact of selected commercial real estate projects. All projections assume the completion 
of the relevant construction project which can depend on several factors including borrowers meeting all lending obligations. Projections are based on overall project costs 
which include the participation of Separate Account J.

UIF is managed by Ullico Investment Advisors, Inc. (“UIA”) and is sold through Ullico Investment Company, Inc. (Member FINRA/SIPC), both subsidiaries of Ullico Inc. 
UIA is a registered investment adviser with the SEC under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended. UIF will only be sold to “accredited investors” as that term 
is defined in Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933. Investment in infrastructure is speculative, not suitable for all investors, and should be undertaken only by 
experienced and sophisticated investors who are willing to bear the high risks of such an investment, which include, but are not limited to, lack of liquidity, restrictions on 
transferring ownership to the Fund, absence of information regarding valuation and pricing, and high fees and expenses. Potential investors in the Fund should carefully 
read the Confidential Private Placement Memorandum for a description of the potential risks associated with investment in the Fund.

Collective Investment Fund (CIF): Hand Benefits & Trust, a BPAS Company is the sponsor of the Ullico J for Jobs Collective Investment Fund (“CIF”), and invests in the 
strategy of Ullico Investment Advisors, Inc. which serves as sub-adviser to the CIF. The CIF is not a mutual fund and was created by the Hand Composite Employee Benefit 
Trust. Its shares are not deposits of Hand Benefits & Trust or UIA, and are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other agency. The CIF is a secu-
rity which has not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 and is exempt from investment company registration under the Investment Act of 1940. The Ullico J for 
Jobs Collective Investment Fund is new and does not have actual performance data to report. Diversification may not protect against market risk. There are risks involved 
with investing, including possible loss of principal. Before investing in any investment portfolio, the client and the financial professional should carefully consider client 
investment objectives, time horizon, risk tolerance, and fees. This collective investment fund is available for investment by eligible qualified retirement plan trusts only.

* As of 12/31/2016 investment commitments include $138.2 million in pending acceptances, which represent awards pending completion of the Subscription Agreement.    
   Completion of Subscription Agreement is not guaranteed and this number is subject to change.

INCREASED AUM BY APPROXIMATELY

$525 million 
$923 million 
IN REAL ESTATE DEBT COMMITMENTS
 

$537 million 
INVESTED IN THE ULLICO INFRASTRUCTURE FUND

IMPACT 
AT-A-GLANCE

Photo courtesy of The United Union of Roofers, Waterproofers and Allied Workers
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Supporting the  
American Labor Movement
Founded and owned by labor, Ullico is committed to giving back to the 

labor movement and exerting a positive influence on the communities 

in which we work and live. To honor that commitment, Ullico has 

teamed with various labor-focused nonprofit organizations and 

charitable causes that share the goals that we embrace—to make the 

world a better place for working Americans.

Ullico proudly supports many labor and community organizations.  

These organizations are listed to the right.
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EDUCATION:
American Labor Museum

Connell F. Smith/ Homer Brown 
Scholarship Fund

I Can Read!

ILA Children’s Fund

Illinois Labor History Society

Institute for Labor Studies and 
Research

John M. Evans Scholarship

Lick Creek Education Foundation

Mercy Center Foundation

Mike Quevedo Sr. Scholarship Fund

Mikva Challenge

OPCMIA Scholarship Fund

Paul Simon Institute – SIU 
Foundation

Ryan Griffin Memorial  
Scholarship Foundation

Sheet Metal Workers’ International  
Scholarship Foundation

United Association for Labor 
Education

US-China Education Trust

Shawnee Community College

Flax Trust

Larc School

Pennsylvania State University

Gonzaga College High school

Southern Illinois University

MILITARY VETERANS:
Folds of Honor

Helmets to Hardhats

Wounded Warrior

HEALTH & WELLNESS:
American Cancer Society

ARCHway Institute

Family Counseling Center Inc.

Great Plains Life Foundation

Illinois Coalition Against  
Domestic Violence

Labor of Love – Diabetes  
Research Institute

Laborers C.A.R.E.

Larger than Life

Leukemia & Lymphoma Society

Poshard Foundation for Abused 
Children

Prevent Child Abuse Kentucky

Robert F. Kennedy Human Rights

Southern Illinois Healthcare 
Foundation

St. Jude’s Children

The Therapy Center

Tigerlily Foundation

UA Charitable Trust – Mayo Clinic

WORKERS’ RIGHTS:
America’s Agenda

Community Labor United

CORPaTH

DC Employment Justice Center

Friends of Labor

Good Jobs First

International Labor Rights Forum

Interfaith Worker Justice

Jobs with Justice

Missouri Jobs with Justice

National Alliance for Fair 
Contracting

National Academy of Social 
Insurance

New Jersey Alliance for Action

Peggy Browning Fund

Philadelphia Jobs with Justice

Women Build Nations Conference

Workers Defense Project

ReBuild USA

Solidarity Center

COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION:
American Ireland Fund

Boy Scouts of America

Chicago Federation of Labor 

Community Service Agency of DC

DC Friends of Ireland

Elderly Housing Development  
& Operations Corporation

Fellowship for Christian Athletes

Gene Slay’s Boys Club of St. Louis

George Goodman League

Giant City School Progress 
Association

Helmets to Hardhats Toys for Tots

Hispanic Bar Association of DC

Illinois Sportsmen’s Caucus

Illinois Women’s Institute for 
Leadership

Instituto Laboral de la Raza

Labor Heritage Foundation

LiUNA African American Caucus

LiUNA Charitable Foundation

New York Friends of Ireland

Southern Illinois Central Labor  
Council Annual Food Drive

Southern Illinois Community 
Foundation 

Tennessee State University

The Cairo Heritage Foundation

The PATCH Foundation

The Rebound Foundation

Union Sportsmen’s Alliance

UFCW Charity Foundation

United Methodist Children’s Home

Washington Ireland Program

DC Bar Pro Bono Center

Labor & Industry Museum

AFT Disaster Relief

Illinois Labor History Museum

UFCW Minority Coalition

American Labor Studies Center

Clinton Foundation

United Way

Poschard Foundation

LiUNA Puerto Rico Relief Fund

PROUDLY SUPPORTING:

Photo courtesy of The American Federation of Teachers, AFL-CIO
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Matthew Woll’s statement in the first Ullico Annual 
Report demonstrated his remarkable vision and 
understanding of the company’s commitment to the 
labor movement and its ability to grow and evolve into 
the future. 

In 2017, Ullico continued to fulfill its commitment of 
growing and protecting the labor movement by providing 
quality products and real-time solutions to solve the 
challenges presented by today’s ever-evolving business 
environment. Our continued success is a testament to 
the invaluable support of our investors and a workforce 
that understands the importance of getting it right the 
first time.

Our investment platforms continue to create opportunities 
for growth in the labor movement and for competitive 
returns for investors.  The strong appeal of our products 
contributed to growth in assets under management of 
12% in 2017. 

Our Real Estate Investment Group celebrated the 40th 
Anniversary of Separate Account J (J for Jobs). Since 
inception, J for Jobs has closed and funded in excess 
of $16 billion in more than 500 real estate projects 
nationwide, generating over 307,000 jobs and 621 
million work hours. 

To date, the Ullico Infrastructure Fund has invested 
$537 million in 8 investments, leveraging over  
$5 billion in enterprise value while rebuilding  
America’s infrastructure. 

Our Stop Loss program continues to be a leader in 
protecting health and welfare funds, and our group 
life program, which the company was founded on, 
had its best year of sales in 2017, with a 26% growth 
in premiums since 2014. The property and casualty 
division has doubled cyber liability policies in the last 
year and grown professional liability coverage 23% since 
2011, while providing real peace of mind to fiduciaries.

At Ullico, our legacy is one of providing products that 
stand the test of time, all while providing  innovative 
solutions to the challenges inherent in the union 
workplace. But our legacy is more than that, because 
our enduring commitment to the labor movement is 
additionally demonstrated in the financial support we 
provide to the labor and community organizations that 
serve it.

On behalf of the board, senior leadership, and all our 
employees, thank you to our shareholders, who allow  
us to continue to make a real difference in the lives  
of working people.

Time and experience will enable us to so develop 
our enterprise to place it beyond our present 
conception of possibilities.
– MATTHEW WOLL, PRESIDENT’S REPORT, “ONE YEAR OF PROGRESS: ADDRESSES AND COMMUNICATIONS,” 
   1927 ANNUAL REPORT, THE UNION LABOR LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

Edward M. Smith
President & CEO

Joseph J. Hunt
Chairman of the Board
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Joseph J. Hunt
Chairman, Ullico Inc.
President Emeritus
International Association of Bridge, Structural, 
Ornamental and Reinforcing Iron Workers 

Stuart M. Bloch
Chairman of the Board Emeritus
Congressional Bank

James Boland
President
International Union of Bricklayers and Allied 
Craftworkers

James T. Callahan
General President
International Union of Operating Engineers 

The Honorable Jerry F. Costello
Former Congressman
Illinois 12th Congressional District

Kenneth W. Cooper
International Secretary-Treasurer
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers

James A. Grogan
General President, Emeritus
International Association of Heat and Frost  
Insulators and Allied Workers

Daniel J. Kane
Vice President,
International Brotherhood of Teamsters,  
Eastern Region

Christopher B. Lissner   
President & Managing Member
Acropolis Investment Management, LLC

Edward J. McElroy
President Emeritus
American Federation of Teachers, AFL-CIO

Mark McManus
General President
United Association

Sean McGarvey
Secretary-Treasurer, Ullico Inc.
President
North America’s Building Trades Unions

Terence M. O’Sullivan   
General President
Laborers’ International Union of North America

Kenneth E. Rigmaiden   
General President
International Union of Painters and Allied Trades

Kinsey M. Robinson   
International President
United Union of Roofers, Waterproofers  
& Allied Workers 

K. Dunlop Scott
President, Managing Principal, Chief Operating Officer,
Columbia Partners

DeMaurice F. Smith   
Executive Director
NFL Players Association

Edward M. Smith
President & CEO
Ullico Inc.

Edward C. Sullivan 
President Emeritus
Building and Construction Trades Department,  
AFL-CIO

George Tedeschi
President
Graphic Communications Conference of the 
International Brotherhood of Teamsters

Richard L. Trumka
President
American Federation of Labor and Congress  
of Industrial Organizations 

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Photo courtesy of The International Association 
of Bridge, Structural, Ornamental and 
Reinforcing Iron Workers Union, AFL-CIO
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2017 and 2016 Consolidated 
Financial Statements

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  

FINANCIAL REPORTING AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON DISCLOSURE CONTROLS  

AND PROCEDURES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON  

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS  

ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over  
Financial Reporting as of December 31, 2017

Management of Ullico Inc. and its subsidiaries (“the Company”) is responsible for establishing 

and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over 

financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the Company’s principal 

executive and financial officers and effected by the Company’s board of directors, management 

and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles. Internal control over financial reporting includes 

those policies and procedures that:

• Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

• Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

• Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect  

on the financial statements.

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting 

as of December 31, 2017, based on the control criteria established in a report entitled 

Internal Control-Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations 

of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework). Based on such evaluation, management has 

concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of 

December 31, 2017. 

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017 has 

been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s independent auditors, as stated in their 

report, which appears herein.
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Management’s Report on Disclosure Controls  
and Procedures as of December 31, 2017

The Company has established disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material 

information relating to the Company, including its subsidiaries, is made known to the officers 

responsible for financial reporting, other members of senior management and to the board 

of directors. Based upon their evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure 

controls and procedures, the principal executive and financial officers have concluded that 

such disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that the information required 

to be disclosed by the Company is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the 

appropriate time periods. 

The Company intends to review and evaluate the design and effectiveness of its disclosure 

controls and procedures on an ongoing basis. The Company intends to make all necessary 

improvements in controls and procedures and correct any deficiencies that may be discovered 

in the future in order to ensure that senior management has timely access to all material 

financial and non-financial information concerning the Company’s business. While the 

present design of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures is effective to achieve 

these results, future events affecting the Company’s business may cause management to 

modify its disclosure controls and procedures.

Edward M. Smith David J. Barra
President & Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President 
 Chief Financial Officer
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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Ernst & Young LLP
2005 Market Street
Suite 700
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Tel: +1 215 448 5000
Fax: +1 215 448 4069
ey.com

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Ullico Inc.

We have audited Ullico Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). Ullico Inc.’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Ullico Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2017, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements of Ullico Inc., and our report dated April
19, 2018 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

April 19, 2018
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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Ernst & Young LLP
2005 Market Street
Suite 700
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Tel: +1 215 448 5000
Fax: +1 215 448 4069
ey.com

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders of Ullico Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ullico Inc. as of December 31, 2017 and
2016, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Ullico Inc. at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the consolidated results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) and our report dated April 19, 2018 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require that the incurred and paid claims
development prior to the most recent year and the average annual percentage payout of incurred claims
disclosed in Note 8 be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the financial statements, is required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

April 19, 2018



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

(in thousands)

December 31,   December 31,

2017    2016

 ASSETS 

 Fixed maturity and debt securities, at fair value (amortized cost of $308,975 and $303,556) $              318,382 $              310,919

 Equity securities, available for sale, at fair value (cost of $8,099) 9,014 8,225

 Investments in limited partnerships and limited liability corporations 6,539 7,603

 Mortgage loans, held for investment 10,239 25,889

   Total Investments $              344,174 $              352,636

 Cash and cash equivalents                    41,487 20,524

 Accrued investment income 2,873 2,842

 Premiums, accounts and notes receivable 16,767 20,280

 Reinsurance recoverable 73,208 73,323

 Property and equipment, net 3,286 4,031

 Goodwill, net 619 923

 Deferred policy acquisition costs 6,537 6,386

 Deferred income tax 17,700 20,319       

 Other assets                          10,440                          8,174

 Separate account assets 3,283,409 3,016,900

 TOTAL ASSETS $           3,800,500                 $           3,526,338
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

(in thousands, except share amounts)

  December 31,   December 31,

2017 2016

 LIABILITIES 

 Policy and claim reserves: 

   Life, accident and health and annuities $            191,921                        $            200,326                        

   Property and casualty 36,747 29,683

 Deposit-type annuity contracts 43,716 46,369

 Policyholder funds on deposit 1,055 1,058

 Policyholder dividends payable 4,416 5,083

 Unearned and advance premiums 13,252 13,329

   Total Policy Liabilities 291,107 295,848

 Accounts payable and other liabilities 28,772 27,575

 Reinsurance balances payable 9,992 9,684

Note payable related to coinsurance agreement 16,759 17,341

Accrued pension and other post-employment benefits  (“OPEB”) 19,063 18,102

Current income tax payable                             409 590

Separate account liabilities 3,283,409 3,016,900

TOTAL LIABILITIES $         3,649,511                 $         3,386,040

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

 Capital stock ($25 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized; issued and 6,284 6,284

   outstanding 251,351 at 12/31/17 and 12/31/16) 

 Class A common stock, voting ($1 par value; 20,000,000  shares authorized; 8,901 7,337

   issued and outstanding 8,901,968 at 12/31/17 and 7,337,036 at 12/31/16) 

 Class B common stock, nonvoting ($1 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; - 1,564

   issued and outstanding none at 12/31/17 and 1,564,932 at 12/31/16) 

 Additional capital paid-in 190,524 190,524

 Accumulated other comprehensive income:

   Unrealized investment gains, net of deferred tax                                                                                                          6,709                     4,868

   Pension/OPEB liability adjustment, net of deferred tax                                 3,747      5,622

   Accumulated other comprehensive income                       10,456                        10,490

 Retained deficit (65,491)                      (75,901)                      

TOTAL ULLICO INC. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 150,674               140,298

Noncontrolling interest 315 -

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 150,989 140,298

TOTAL LIABILITIES and STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $         3,800,500                 $         3,526,338                 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 

OF INCOME 
 (in thousands)

    Years Ended     

December 31,            December 31,

2017         2016

INCOME

 Premium income: 

   Life, accident and health and annuities $               126,743 $               121,050

   Property and casualty 29,964 28,957

 Fee based income 62,863 57,136

 Net investment income 11,503 12,150

 Net realized gains 309                                  1,401

Transfer of net assets related to coinsurance agreement - (17,996)

Other income 4,045 3,927

TOTAL INCOME      $               235,427      $               206,265

BENEFITS and EXPENSES

 Life, accident and health and annuities 97,901 49,819

 Interest credited to policyholder account balances 1,135 1,089

 Losses and loss adjustment expenses - property and casualty 18,724 14,365

 Policyholder dividends 2,734 3,817

   Total policy benefits and claims expenses 120,494 69,090

 Commissions                        29,582                        27,151

 Sales, general and administrative expenses 65,583 81,591

 Net change in deferred acquisition costs                      (151)                           682

Deferred acquisition cost write-down related to coinsurance agreement - 18,748

Taxes, licenses and fees 3,689 3,874

Interest expense 682 347

TOTAL BENEFITS and EXPENSES     $               219,879     $               201,483

Net income before extraordinary item 15,548 4,782

Gain on sale of subsidiary - 2,575

Net income before income taxes 15,548 7.357

Income tax benefit/(expense) (3,867) 18,444

NET INCOME/(LOSS) 11,681 25,801

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest (1,271) -

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO ULLICO INC. $                 10,410     $                 25,801
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

Years Ended

December 31, December 31,

   2017 2016

Net income attributable to Ullico Inc. $         10,410    $       25,801    

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax:

  Unrealized investment gains arising during the year, net of $1,045 and $87 of tax 1,939 162

   Reclassification adjustment for realized gains/(losses) on securities included in net income, net of $(52) and $343 of tax (98) 637

   Change in unrealized gains on securities, net of $993 and $430 of tax  1,841 799

   Change in pension/OPEB liability, net of $(499) and $(218) of tax (1,875) (405)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO ULLICO INC. 10,376 26,195

   Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest 315 -

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $          10,691  $      26,195
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN 

CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands)

Shares    Capital Stock
Class A  

Common Stock
Class B  

Common Stock
Additional  

Capital Paid-In

Balance, January 1, 2016                                     9,153  $              6,284  $              7,337  $              1,564  $          190,524

Balance, December 31, 2016                             9,153  $              6,284  $              7,337  $              1,564  $          190,524

Conversion of Class B stock to Class A stock 1,564 (1,564)

Balance, December 31, 2017                             9,153  $              6,284  $              8,901  $                     -  $          190,524

Accumulated  
Other  

Comprehensive 
Income

Retained  
Deficit

Noncontrolling 
Interest

Total

Balance, January 1, 2016 $       10,096 $      (101,702)  $                     -   $      116,482   

Net income 25,801 25,801

Change in unrealized income on investments, net 799 799

Change in pension/OPEB liability, net (405) (405)

Total comprehensive income 26,195

Balance, December 31, 2016   $    10,490     $       (75,901) $                     -      $       140,298  

   Net income 10,410 1,271 11,681

   Change in unrealized gain on investments, net 1,841 1,841

   Change in pension/OPEB liability, net (1,875) (1,875)

   Distribution to noncontrolling shareholder (956) (956)

   Total comprehensive income 10,691

   Balance, December 31, 2017   $       10,456 $        (65,491) $                 315 $      150,989
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Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 

OF CASH FLOWS  
(in thousands)

Years Ended
December 31, December 31,

2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income attributable to Ullico Inc. $                        10,410 $                           25,801
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
  Interest credited to policyholder account balances 748 780
  Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 13,837 32,964
  Capitalization of deferred policy acquisition costs (13,989) (13,534)
  Amortization & depreciation expense 1,469 2,921
  Deferred income taxes 1,627 (20,749)
  Net realized gains (309) (1,401)
  Realized gain from sale of subsidiary - (2,575)
  (Gains)/losses on limited partnership investments, net (86) (821)
  Change in premiums, accounts and note receivable 3,513 (1,137)
  Change in reinsurance recoverable/payable 423 (39,650)
  Change in note payable related to coinsurance agreement (582) 17,341
  Change in policy liabilities (2,085) 7,777
  Change in accounts payable and other liabilities 283 (987)
  Change in current income tax recoverable/payable (181) 142
  Cash and short term investments to subsidiary buyer - (3,296)
  Other, net (1,382) 1,714
Cash provided by operating activities 13,696 5,290

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales & maturities of investments:
  Fixed maturity and debt security sales 14,732 51,768
  Fixed maturity and debt security maturities 25,131 19,900
  Mortgage loans 15,650 3,639
  Limited partnerships                            1,150                            146
  Sale of subsidiary - 8,308
Purchases of investments:
  Fixed maturities and debt securities (45,849) (75,558)
  Equity securities - (8.099)
  Mortgage Loans - (10,224)
Purchases of property & equipment (461) (694)
Cash provided by/(used in) investing activities: 10,353 (10,814)

Cash flows from financing activities:
  Investment product deposits 14,804 8,646
  Investment product withdrawals (18,205) (11,555)
  Change to noncontrolling interest                                  315 -
Cash used in financing activities (3,086) (2,909)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 20,963 (8,433)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 20,524 28,957
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $                        41,487 $                         20,524
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Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 1---Organization and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Ullico Inc., a privately held specialty insurance and investments holding 
company serving the union workplace, and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Ullico” or “the Company”).  Ullico’s primary wholly owned subsidiaries include The 
Union Labor Life Insurance Company (“Union Labor Life”), Ullico Casualty Group, LLC (“UCG”), Ullico Investment Advisors, Inc. (“UIA”) and Ullico Investment 
Company, LLC.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).  All significant 
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  The preparation of financial statements requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual amounts could differ from these estimates due to a number of factors, including changes in the 
level of mortality, morbidity, interest rates, asset valuations, experience development, claims frequency and severity trends and changes in market conditions 
and such differences could occur in the near term.  

Nature of Operations
Union Labor Life was founded in 1925 by the officials of the American Federation of Labor to provide low cost insurance protection to union members and 
their collectively bargained union benefit plans. Ullico Inc. was formed in 1987 to facilitate the restructuring of the insurance subsidiaries and to enable the 
Company to expand its investment services capabilities through non-insurance subsidiaries.  Ownership of Ullico’s stock is generally restricted to interna-
tional and national trade unions, their members, their members’ benefit funds and directors and officers of the Company.

The activities of the Company cover a broad range of insurance and financial products and services provided principally to labor unions and their members, 
employers of union members, employee benefit plans and trustees of benefit plans, including life and health insurance, property and casualty insurance, 
investment advisory services, asset management and mortgage banking and servicing activities.  

Noncontrolling Interest
UIA, a registered investment advisor, manages assets for Taft-Hartley pension funds and other qualified investors.  UIA manages the Ullico Infrastructure 
Fund (“UIF”), which invests in privately-negotiated opportunities in the infrastructure sector.  Effective January 1, 2017, UIA entered into an Investment 
Sub-Advisory Agreement with Ullico Infrastructure Management Company, LLC (“UIMC”), pursuant to which UIMC will provide exclusive investment advisor 
services for the UIF infrastructure investments, under UIA’s supervision.  UIA, which owns 79% of UIMC, formed UIMC with Ullico Infrastructure Partners, LLC 
(“UIP”), which owns the remaining 21%.  UIP is an entity owned by the principal portfolio management staff for infrastructure investments.  Noncontrolling 
interest accounting is utilized to record the net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest and the noncontrolling equity interest related to UIP.  

Sale of Ullico Life Insurance Company
On April 12, 2016, Union Labor Life sold all the outstanding shares of its wholly owned subsidiary, Ullico Life Insurance Company (“Ullico Life”).  Union Labor 
Life recognized approximately $2.6 million in pre-tax gain from the transaction and also wrote-off $1.5 million of goodwill in the second quarter of 2016. 
Revenues and net loss from Ullico Life were $0.1 million and $(0.9) million, respectively, for the period ended April 12, 2016.
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 2---Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Invested Assets
Fixed maturity and debt securities are designated as available for sale and are reported at fair value.  The fair value of fixed maturity and debt securities is 
based upon independent market quotations.  Other than securities that are other than temporarily impaired, changes in fair value of securities designated 
as available for sale, net of deferred income taxes, are recorded as a separate component of stockholders’ equity, and accordingly have no effect on net 
income.  Cash received from maturities and pay downs is reflected as a component of proceeds from sales and maturities of investments in the statements 
of cash flows.

Equity securities are recorded at fair value if independent market quotations are available.  If independent market quotations are not available, fair values 
are based on estimates which utilize other valuation techniques.  The difference between cost and fair value, net of deferred income taxes, is recorded as a 
separate component of stockholders’ equity, and accordingly has no effect on net income. 

Limited partnership investments and limited liability corporations are recorded in accordance with the equity method of accounting.  

Mortgage loans are carried at unpaid principal balances, less impairment reserves.  For mortgage loans considered impaired, a specific reserve is estab-
lished.  Mortgage loans are considered impaired when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect amounts due according to the contractual 
terms of the loan agreement.  When a mortgage loan has been determined to be impaired, a reserve is established for the difference between the unpaid 
principal of the mortgage loan and its fair value.  Fair value is based on the lower of either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at 
the mortgage loan’s effective interest rate or the fair value of the underlying collateral.  Changes in the mortgage valuation reserves are reflected in realized 
gains or losses.  

Cash equivalents include money market funds and other investments whose maturities at the time of acquisition were ninety days or less and are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash. These investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

Declines in the fair value of invested assets below cost are evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment losses. The portfolio of investments is reviewed 
on a quarterly basis to determine if an other-than-temporary decline in value has occurred.  The decision to impair a security incorporates both quantitative 
criteria and qualitative information.  A number of items factor into the “impairment” decision including, but not limited to:  (a) materiality and length of 
unrealized loss; (b) the financial condition of the issuer; (c) the business plan and trend of the issuer; (d) general market conditions and industry or sector 
specific factors; (e) interest rate environment and (f) whether the Company intends to sell or thinks it is more likely than not it will be required to sell the 
security prior to recovery.  

If the fair value of a fixed maturity or debt security declines in value below the Company’s amortized cost and the Company intends to sell or determines that 
it will more likely than not be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis, management considers the security to be other than 
temporarily impaired and reports its decline in fair value as a realized investment loss in the consolidated statements of income as the difference between 
carrying value and fair value.  If, however, the Company does not intend to sell the security and determines that it is not more likely than not that it will be 
required to do so, then declines in the fair value of the security are considered. If, in the judgment of management, the declines in fair value are considered 
to be other than temporary, they are separated into amounts representing credit losses and amounts related to other factors.  Amounts representing credit 
losses are reported as realized investment losses in the consolidated statements of income and amounts related to other factors are included as a compo-
nent of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss, net of the related income tax benefit.  The amount of credit loss is determined by discounting the 
security’s expected cash flows at its effective interest rate at the time of acquisition.  Declines in the fair value of all other investments, with the exception of 
mortgage loans, that are considered in the judgment of management to be other than temporary are reported as realized investment losses in the consoli-
dated statements of income.

Premium, Accounts and Notes Receivable
Premiums, accounts and notes receivable consist primarily of accrued premiums receivable from the Company’s insurance customers.  Premiums, accounts 
and notes receivable are carried at their estimated collectible amounts, net of any allowance for doubtful accounts, and are periodically evaluated for 
collectability based on past payment history and current economic conditions.

Concentration and Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration and credit risk are primarily cash and cash equivalents, investments, accounts 
receivable and reinsurance recoverable.  Investments are diversified through many industries and geographic regions through the use of investment manag-
ers who employ different investment strategies.  The Company limits the amount of credit exposure with any one financial institution and believes that no 
significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to cash and investments.  The premiums receivable balances are generally diversified due to the 

29



Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

distribution of policyholders across many states.  The Company also has receivables from reinsurers.  Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company 
from its obligations to its policyholders.   Failure of reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in losses to the Company.  The Company periodically 
evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and in certain cases, requires collateral from its reinsurers to minimize its exposure to significant losses 
from reinsurer insolvencies.  Management’s policy is to review all outstanding receivable balances as well as bad debt write-offs experienced in the past and 
establish an allowance for doubtful accounts, if deemed necessary.  See Note 9, Reinsurance, for additional details on concentration and credit risk related 
to the Company’s reinsurance programs.

Policy and Claim Reserves and Policyholder Contract Deposits
Life and health insurance products consist principally of group insurance policies.  Most of the Company’s group life and health insurance policies are 
participating.  Therefore, in addition to guaranteed benefits, they pay dividends, as declared annually by the Company based on its experience.  The group 
life and health insurance claim reserves are based on projections of historical claim development.  The policy reserves, as related to life and health products, 
are based on assumptions for mortality and morbidity, utilizing interest rates ranging from 2.25% to 6.0%. 

Investment-type annuity products consist of single premium annuity contracts.  Annuity reserves consist principally of liabilities for group pension funds that 
are deposited on behalf of groups to provide immediate and future retirement benefits to group members.

Policy reserves and policyholder contract deposits on annuity and universal life insurance products are determined following the retrospective deposit 
method and consist of policy account values that accrue to the benefit of the policyholder, based on guaranteed rates stated in the policy contract, before 
deduction of surrender charges.

The reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses for property and casualty insurance policies include estimates for losses and claims reported prior to 
the balance sheet date, estimates of claims incurred but not reported based on projections of historical loss developments and estimates of expenses for 
investigating, defending and adjusting all incurred and unadjusted claims. Actual amounts could differ from these estimates if these assumptions do not 
occur as expected. Reserves are continually monitored and reviewed, and any adjustments are reflected in the current period consolidated statements of 
income.

Fee Based Income
Fee based income consists primarily of revenue generated from administrative services, investment management fees charged to Separate Accounts and 
third parties and managing general agency fees.  Investment management fees were $39.5 million and $32.8 million for the years ended December 31, 
2017 and 2016, respectively. Property and casualty fee based income was $21.9 million and $22.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. The majority of this income relates to managing general agency fees resulting from program administrator agreements with Markel American 
Insurance Company (“Markel”) and Alterra America Insurance Company (“Alterra”) of $21.1 million and $22.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 
and 2016, respectively. UCG also received wholesale agency fees from agency agreements with Amtrust North America and Seneca Insurance Company of 
$0.7 million and $0.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. In addition, life and health marketing fees were $1.5 million and $1.6 million 
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.  

Premiums, Charges and Benefits
Premiums for life and accident and health policies are generally recognized when due.  Premiums for property and casualty are earned over the contract 
term.  Benefit claims (including an estimated provision for claims incurred but not reported), benefit reserve changes, and expenses (except deferred policy 
acquisition costs) are charged to income as incurred.  

Deposits for certain investment-type annuity and universal life insurance contracts are treated as liabilities rather than as premiums.  Revenues for 
investment-type products consist of policy charges for the cost of insurance, policy initiation, administration and surrenders during the period.  Expenses 
include interest credited to policy account balances and benefit payments made in excess of policy account balances.  Credited interest rates ranged from 
1.75% to 6.0% in 2017 and 2016.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs (“DAC”)
The Company defers and amortizes costs which are incrementally and directly related to the successful acquisition of new or renewal insurance business. 
Such costs include commissions and costs of marketing the Company’s products. DAC associated with property and casualty insurance is amortized to 
expense as premiums are earned (typically 12 months or less).  For annuity products, DAC is amortized to expense in relation to estimated gross profits.  
Anticipated investment income is considered when determining if a premium deficiency relating to short-duration contracts exists.
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Investment Income
Investment income primarily consists of interest from fixed maturity and debt securities, dividends from common stock and net investment income from 
limited partnership and limited liability corporation interests.  Interest and dividends are recognized on an accrual basis.  Income from limited partnership 
investments and limited liability corporations is recorded based on the equity method and earnings are included in investment income.  Realized gains and 
losses include gains and losses on investment dispositions and write downs in value due to other-than-temporary declines in fair value.  Realized gains and 
losses on investment dispositions are determined on a specific identification basis.

Policyholder Dividends
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, approximately 99% of the Company’s in-force life and health business was written on a participating basis.  Dividends 
are earned by the policyholders ratably over the policy year. Dividends are included in the accompanying financial statements as a liability and as a charge 
to income in the period incurred. Dividends are paid within a few months of the anniversary date of the policy.

Reinsurance
The reinsurance recoverable amount reported includes amounts billed to reinsurers on paid policy life and accident and health benefits, as well as estimates 
of amounts expected to be recovered from reinsurance on amounts that have not yet been paid. Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid policy benefits and 
claims are estimated based upon assumptions consistent with those utilized in establishing reserves.  The Company reviews reinsurance recoverable for 
collectability and records write-downs if necessary.  Premiums, benefits and expenses are recorded net of experience refunds, reserve adjustments and 
amounts assumed from or ceded to reinsurers, including commission and expense allowances.  The reinsurance balances payable amount reported includes 
amounts billed from reinsurers for premiums ceded which were written by the Company.  

Separate Accounts
Union Labor Life maintains separate account assets and liabilities, representing net deposits and accumulated net investment earnings less fees, held 
primarily for the benefit of tax-qualified group pension contract holders, which are reported at fair value in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. The 
Company does not bear the investment risk.  The assets consist primarily of equity securities, publicly traded long-term bonds, construction and permanent 
mortgages, real estate equity, cash equivalents and short-term investments.  Investments income/(loss) from separate account investments do not impact 
the Company’s consolidated results. 

Income Taxes
Current federal income taxes are charged or credited to income based upon amounts estimated to be payable or recoverable as a result of taxable income.  
Deferred income tax assets have been recorded for temporary differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the accompanying 
financial statements and those in the Company’s income tax returns.  A deferred tax asset valuation allowance is established if it is more likely than not 
that such an asset would not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the 
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is 
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.  Included in property and equipment are capitalized costs 
related to computer software licenses and software developed for internal use.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the related assets.  Estimated useful lives of depreciated assets are as follows: personal computers (3 years); printers, servers, mainframe 
equipment, software and furniture and fixtures (5 years).  Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the as-
sets or the related lease term, ranging from 5 to 10 years.  Accumulated depreciation on property and equipment was $15.5 million and $15.3 million at 
December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.  Depreciation expense was $1.2 million and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. 
The Company reviews its property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be 
recoverable.  

Goodwill 
Goodwill of $0.6 million and $0.9 million as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively, represents the excess of purchase price over fair 
value of the net assets of acquired entities.  The Company recorded amortization of $0.3 million and $1.8 million for the years ending December 31, 2017 
and 2016, respectively. The 2016 amortization amount includes a $1.5 million write-off of goodwill related to the sale of Ullico Life.
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Contingent Liabilities
Amounts related to contingent liabilities are accrued if it is probable that a liability has been incurred and an amount is reasonably estimable.  

Reserves for Litigation
The Company is subject to lawsuits in the normal course of business related to its insurance and non-insurance products.  At the time when pending or 
threatened litigation becomes known, management evaluates the merits of the case and, if the potential settlements or judgments are determined to be 
probable and estimable, a reserve is established in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), Accounting Standards Codification 
(“ASC”), 450-20, Contingencies, Loss Contingencies.  These reserves may be adjusted as the case develops.  Periodically, and at least quarterly, manage-
ment assesses all pending cases as a basis for evaluating reserve levels.  At that point, any necessary adjustments are made to applicable reserves as 
determined by management and are included in current operating results.  Reserves may be adjusted based upon outside counsel’s advice regarding the 
laws and facts of the case, any revisions in the law applicable to the case, the results of depositions and/or other forms of discovery, general developments 
as the case progresses such as a favorable or an adverse trial court ruling, whether a verdict is rendered for or against the Company, whether management 
believes an appeal will be successful, or other factors that may affect the anticipated outcome of the case.  Due to the uncertainty of future events, there can 
be no assurance that actual outcomes will not differ from the assessments made by management. 

Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through April 19, 2018, the date the consolidated financial statements were 
available to be issued and has determined there are no events that require disclosure.

Accounting Pronouncements

Revenue Recognition
In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which creates a new 
comprehensive revenue recognition standard that will serve as a single source of revenue guidance for all companies in all industries. The guidance applies 
to all companies that either enter into contracts with customers to transfer goods or services or enter into contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial assets, 
unless those contracts are within the scope of other standards, such as insurance contracts. The revenue recognition guidance for insurance contracts is 
currently under discussion and will be issued at a later date. Under ASU No. 2014-09, a company will recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or 
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In 
doing so, companies will need to use more judgment and make more estimates than under the current guidance. These may include identifying performance 
obligations in the contract, estimating the amount of variable consideration to include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each 
separate performance obligation. Subsequently, in August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): 
Deferral of the Effective Date, which defers the Company’s date of adoption of ASU No. 2014-09 to 2019. The Company is currently evaluating ASU No. 2014-
09 to determine the potential impact that adopting this standard will have on its consolidated financial statements.

Short Duration Contracts
In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-09, Disclosure about Short-Duration Contracts. The new guidance requires additional disclosure regarding the 
liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses. This guidance is effective for private business entities for full annual periods beginning after 
December 15, 2016 and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The Company has included these disclosures in Note 8 of 
the December 31, 2017 consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 3---Investment Securities 
The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses and fair value of investments as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 are as 
follows (in millions):

December 31, 2017

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized  

Gains
Gross Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

$          15.1 $            0.5 $                0.1 $            15.5

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and political subdivisions 
of states

62.0 4.1 1.1 66.0

Debt securities issued by foreign governments 0.6 0.1 - 0.7

Corporate debt securities 155.7 4.7 0.5 159.9

Residential mortgage-backed securities 75.6 1.6 0.9 76.3

Total fixed income securities 309.0 11.0 1.6 318.4

Equity securities 8.1 0.9 - 9.0

     Total $         317.1 $          11.9 $             1.6 $          327.4

December 31, 2016

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized 

Gains
Gross Unrealized 

Losses
       Fair Value

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

$          17.5 $            0.6 $                  - $            18.1

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and political subdivisions 
of states

59.0 4.3 0.3 63.0

Debt securities issued by foreign governments 0.6 0.1 - 0.7

Corporate debt securities 153.7 3.4 1.7 155.4

Residential mortgage-backed securities 72.8 1.8 0.9 73.7

Total fixed income securities 303.6 10.2 2.9 310.9

Equity securities 8.1 0.1 - 8.2

     Total $          311.7 $          10.3 $             2.9 $          319.1

The Company had $5.5 million and $5.4 million of securities on deposit with state regulatory authorities as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, 
respectively.

The Company had $57.0 million and $51.5 million of assets pledged as collateral held in trust for benefit of third parties at December 31, 2017 and 
December 31, 2016, respectively.
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturity securities at December 31, 2017 by contractual maturity are shown below (in millions):

Amortized  
Cost

Fair Value

Due in one year or less $              14.8  $        14.8  

Due after one year through five years 91.4 93.1

Due after five years through ten years 52.3 54.0

Due after ten years 150.5 156.5

     Total $          309.0 $       318.4

Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without prepayment 
penalties. Mortgage-backed securities are included based on their final maturity.

Realized gains/(losses) on fixed maturities for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, are summarized as follows (in millions):

Realized Gains/(Losses)
December 31, 

2017
December 31, 

2016

Fixed income securities $             0.3 $               1.4

     Total Realized Gains/(Losses) $             0.3 $               1.4

The following table shows the Company’s investments with gross unrealized losses and their fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of 
time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2017 (in millions).

Less than 12 months      12 months or more Total

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Unrealized 
Losses

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other 
U.S. government corporations and agencies

$              5.7 $          0.1 $              3.5 $        - $         9.2 $            0.1

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and  
political subdivisions of states

5.4 0.1 1.9                   - 7.3 0.1

Corporate debt securities 31.0 0.1 20.8                   0.4 51.8 0.5

Residential mortgage-backed securities 17.6 0.1 32.0                    0.8 49.6 0.9

    Total $            59.7 $       0.4   $          58.2 $      1.2 $        117.9 $           1.6

The Company’s investment portfolio includes $0.4 million of unrealized losses on sixty-two fixed maturity securities that have been in a continuous loss 
position for less than twelve months.  The portfolio includes $1.2 million of unrealized losses on sixty-eight fixed maturity securities that have been in a loss 
position for more than twelve months. The balance in the Company’s gross unrealized losses for available for sale securities for the year ended December 
31, 2017 was attributable primarily to reduced liquidity in several market segments. Based upon the nature of the fixed maturity securities, the Company 
believes that each issuer will meet all of its financial obligations. The Company does not consider the fixed maturity securities to be other-than-temporarily 
impaired as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, based on the factors described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. 
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The following table shows the Company’s investments with gross unrealized losses and their fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of 
time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2016 (in millions).

Less than 12 months      12 months or more Total

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Unrealized 
Losses

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other 
U.S. government corporations and agencies

$              3.5 $           - $             - $       - $            3.5 $            -

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and  
political subdivisions of states

7.4 0.3 - - 7.4 0.3

Corporate debt securities 49.2 1.4 7.1 0.3 56.3 1.7

Residential mortgage-backed securities 43.0 0.9 1.7 - 44.7 0.9

    Total $            103.1 $       2.6   $          8.8 $    0.3 $        111.9 $        2.9   

Net unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on securities as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 is summarized as follows (in millions):

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016

Fixed income securities $        9.4 $        7.3

Equity securities 0.9 0.1

Less: Deferred income taxes (3.6) (2.5)

      Net unrealized appreciation  $        6.7           $        4.9          

Net investment income, by type of investment, is as follows for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in millions):

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016

Gross investment income:

   Fixed income securities  $        10.7  $      10.9

   Equity securities 0.3 0.1

   Mortgage loans, held for investment 0.9 1.1

   Limited partnerships 0.2 0.9

   Other investment income 0.3 0.1

Gross investment income 12.4 13.1

Less: Investment expenses (0.9) (0.9)

     Net investment income $        11.5 $      12.2
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Note 4---Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has adopted ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for all financial instruments accounted for or disclosed at fair value in the 
Company’s financial statements.  ASC 820 established a new framework for measuring fair value and expands related disclosures. Broadly, the framework 
requires fair value to be determined based on the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the prin-
cipal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. It also establishes market or observable 
inputs as the preferred source of values, followed by assumptions based on hypothetical transactions in the absence of market inputs.

 ASC 820 specifies that a hierarchy of valuation techniques be determined for each asset or liability based on whether the inputs to the valuation technique 
for those assets are observable or unobservable.  Observable inputs reflect market data corroborated by independent sources while unobservable inputs 
reflect assumptions that are not observable in an active market or are developed internally.  These two types of inputs create three valuation hierarchy levels:

• Level 1 valuations reflect quoted market or exchange prices for the actual or identical assets or liabilities in active markets. 

• Level 2 valuations reflect inputs other than quoted prices in Level 1 which are observable. The inputs can include some or all of the following into a valu-
ation model:

quoted prices on similar assets in active markets

quoted prices on actual assets that are not active

inputs other than quoted prices such as yield curves, volatilities, prepayments speeds

inputs derived from market data  

• Level 3 valuations reflect valuations in which one or more of the significant valuation inputs are not observable in an active market, there is limited if 
any market activity, and/or are based on management inputs into a valuation model.

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value instruments using the best and most relevant data available. The Company determines the fair 
value of financial assets utilizing prices obtained from a third party pricing service.  Typical inputs used to determine fair value include, but are not limited 
to, reported trades, broker/dealer prices, benchmark yields and issuer spreads.  In addition, the Company has an investment management team that reviews 
the valuation, including independent price validation for certain instruments. 

36



Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

 The following section describes the valuation methodologies the Company uses to measure the financial instruments at fair value.

Investments in Fixed Maturity and Debt Securities
All fixed maturity and debt securities are considered available for sale and consist of: United States (“US”) Treasury notes and bonds which trade actively 
and are categorized as Level 1; corporate bonds, government or agency debt, securitized debt (collateralized mortgage obligation or mortgage backed 
security) and private placements have valuations that use such inputs as dealer quotations, matrix pricing methodology, similar traded securities, and other 
observable data to generate their fair values which result in a Level 2 categorization.

Investments in Equity Securities
Equity securities consist of investments in exchange traded funds. These investments have readily available market or exchange prices which result in a 
Level 1 categorization.  

Investments in Cash Equivalents
Investments in cash equivalents consist of money market fund holdings, US Treasury bills and certificates of deposit. All of these instruments have readily 
available market or exchange prices in an active market and are categorized as Level 1 assets. 

Separate Account Assets
The amount shown on the balance sheet represents the total of all Separate Account assets held in each of the accounts managed within the Company.  
Assets held in the Separate Accounts consists of US Treasury bills, US Treasury bonds, cash, common stock and investments in money market funds all of 
which are Level 1 assets as their values are readily available in the open market. Corporate bonds, corporate commercial paper, government or agency debt 
and securitized debt are valued using the market approach and priced using pricing models or matrix pricing making them Level 2 assets. For Separate 
Account J, each mortgage loan’s fair value is established externally on a monthly basis using the present value of future mortgage payments due thereunder 
and are categorized as Level 3 assets.    For Separate Account W1, mortgage loans are fair valued internally using a discounted cash flow method and are 
categorized as Level 3 assets.  Real estate is fair valued externally using a method that includes inputs such as: appraisals of the assets, the nature of the 
investment, local market conditions and current and projected operating performance of the real estate investments and is categorized as Level 3 assets.
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The following table presents the Company’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2017 (in millions):

Balance Sheet Line Item Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value at 
12/31/2017

Fixed Maturities
Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

  $   13.3     $    2.2     $      -   $    15.5

Debt securities issued by U.S. 
states and political subdivisions 
of states

- 66.0 - 66.0

Debt securities issued by foreign 
governments

- 0.7 - 0.7

Corporate debt securities - 159.9 - 159.9

Residential mortgage-backed 
securities

- 76.3 - 76.3

Fixed Maturities Total 13.3 305.1 - 318.4

Equity Securities Common Stock 9.0 - 9.0

Cash Equivalents Money Market 34.9 - 34.9

Total Investments   $   57.2 305.1  $      - $    362.3

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 2017 or 2016.
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The following table presents the Company’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2016 (in millions):

Balance Sheet Line Item Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value at 
12/31/2016

Fixed Maturities
Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

  $   15.8     $    2.3     $      -   $    18.1

Debt securities issued by U.S. 
states and political subdivisions 
of states

- 63.0 - 63.0

Debt securities issued by foreign 
governments

- 0.7 - 0.7

Corporate debt securities - 155.4 - 155.4

Residential mortgage-backed 
securities

- 73.7 - 73.7

Fixed Maturities Total 15.8 295.1 - 310.9

Equity Securities Common Stock 8.2 - 8.2

Cash Equivalents Money Market 14.7 - 14.7

Total Investments   $   38.7 295.1  $      - $    333.8
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The following table details assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2017 for all Separate Accounts (in millions).  Note that the 
Balance Sheet categories “Separate Account Assets” and “Separate Account Liabilities” include receivables and other items that are not required to be 
disclosed under ASC 820.

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value

Equity Securities Common Stock $     74.5 $   - $    - $      74.5

Equity Securities Total 74.5     - - 74.5

Fixed Maturities

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and 
other U.S. government corporations and 
agencies

-                        4.8 - 4.8

Debt securities issued by foreign  
governments

-   0.5 -           0.5

Commercial mortgage-backed securities - 87.9 - 87.9

Corporate debt securities - 8.7 - 8.7

Asset-backed securities 27.1 - 27.1

Residential mortgage-backed securities - 183.8 - 183.8

Fixed Maturities Total - 312.8 - 312.8

Short Term Investments and Cash 
Equivalents

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and 
other U.S. government corporations and 
agencies

 - 0.6 - 0.6

Corporate debt securities - 196.3 - 196.3

Money market funds 466.2 - - 466.2

Short Term Investments and Cash 
Equivalents Total

466.2 196.9 - 663.1

Mortgage Loans Mortgage Loans            -  - 2,097.9 2,097.9

Real Estate Real Estate                                                          - - 83.2 83.2

Total Separate Account Investments $  540.7 $ 509.7 $ 2,181.1 $ 3,231.5
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The following table presents additional information about valuation methodologies and inputs used for investments that are measured at fair value and 
categorized within Level 3 as of December 31, 2017 (in millions):

Investment Type Fair Value
Valuation  

Techniques
Unobservable 

Inputs
Range 

Weighted  
Average

Mortgage Loans $       647.7
Discounted Cash 

Flow
Discount rates 3.98 – 5.11% 4.58%

Cap rates 3.25 – 7.50% 5.79%

Market rates 4.00 – 7.80% 4.84%

Mortgage Loans 1,450.2 Held at Par (a) N/A N/A N/A

Real Estate 83.2 Appraisal Value (b) N/A N/A N/A

Total Level 3 investments $    2,181.1     

(a) Approximates fair value.

(b) The fair value of the investment is based on a third party appraisal report performed at foreclosure and is adjusted for subsequent sales and assessed

monthly for impairment.

The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 for Separate Accounts from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017  
(in millions): 

Separate Account Assets Real Estate Mortgage Loans   Total

Balance, January 1, 2017 $        89.2 $         2,083.0  $      2,172.2

Total gain or losses (realized/unrealized):

Realized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract holders 5.5 - 5.5

Unrealized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract holders (6.9) (8.1) (15.0)

Purchases/Mortgage Loan Fundings - 594.8 594.8

Sales/Repayments (4.6) (571.8) (576.4)

Balance, December 31, 2017 $         83.2 $          2,097.9  $      2,181.1

The gains/(losses) for the period included in unrealized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract relating to mortgage loans still held at 
December 31, 2017 was $(7.6) million.
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The following table details assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2016 for all Separate Accounts (in millions). Note that the 
Balance Sheet categories “Separate Account Assets” and “Separate Account Liabilities” include receivables and other items that are not required to be 
disclosed under ASC 820.

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value

Equity Securities Common Stock $      68.5 $            - $              - $          68.5

Equities Securities Total 68.5     -       - 68.5

Fixed Maturities

Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

-                       3.8 - 3.8

Debt securities issued by foreign 
governments

-  0.2 - 0.2

Commercial mortgage-backed 
securities

- 153.1 - 153.1

Corporate debt securities - 6.1 - 6.1

Asset-backed securities - 9.6 - 9.6

Residential mortgage-backed securities - 212.2 - 212.2

Fixed Maturities Total - 385.0 - 385.0

Cash Equivalents

Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

 - 57.0 - 57.7

Corporate debt securities           - 0.7 - 0.7

Money market funds 285.4 - - 285.4

Cash Equivalents Total 285.4 57.7 - 343.1

Mortgage Loans Mortgage Loans            -  - 2,083.0 2,083.0

Real Estate Real Estate                                                            - - 89.2 89.2

Total Separate Account Investments    $    353.9 $    442.7 $    2,172.2 $     2,968.8
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The following table presents additional information about valuation methodologies and inputs used for investments that are measured at fair value and 
categorized within Level 3 as of December 31, 2016 (in millions):

Investment Type Fair Value Valuation  
Techniques

Unobservable  
Inputs

Range Weighted  
Average

Mortgage Loans $         675.9 Discounted Cash Flow Discount rates 3.40 – 4.82% 4.32%

Cap rates 3.52 – 10.67% 5.81%

Market rates 4.00 – 7.80% 5.35%

Mortgage Loans 1,407.1 Held at Par (a) N/A N/A N/A

Real Estate 89.2 Appraisal Value (b) N/A N/A N/A

Total Level 3 investments $     2,172.2     

(a) Approximates fair value.

(b) The fair value of the investment is based on a third party appraisal report performed at foreclosure and is adjusted for subsequent sales and assessed 
monthly for impairment.

The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 for Separate Accounts from January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016 (in 
millions):  

Separate Account Assets Real Estate Mortgage Loans   Total

Balance, January 1, 2016 $      93.6 $      1,800.7  $      1,894.3  

 Total gain or losses (realized/unrealized):

Realized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract holders - - -

Unrealized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract holders - (3.4) (3.4)

Purchases/Mortgage Loan Fundings - 858.1 858.1

Sales/Repayments (4.4) (572.4) (576.8)

Balance, December 31, 2016 $      89.2  $      2,083.0 $      2,172.2

The gains/(losses) for the year included in unrealized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract relating to mortgage loans still held at to 
December 31, 2016 was $(0.2) million.
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ASC 825, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not 
recognized in the balance sheets, for which it is practicable to estimate that value.  In cases where quoted market prices are not available for identical 
or comparable financial instruments, fair values are based on estimates using the present values of estimated cash flows or other valuation techniques.  
Estimated fair values can be significantly affected by the methods and assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates as to the amounts and 
timing of future cash flows.  Accordingly, the fair values may not represent actual values of the financial instruments that could have been realized by the 
Company as of year-end or that will be realized in the future.

Fair values for the Company’s insurance contracts other than investment contracts are not required to be disclosed under ASC 825.  However, the estimated 
fair value and future cash flows of liabilities under all insurance contracts are taken into consideration in the Company’s overall management of interest 
rate risk, which minimizes exposure to changing interest rates through the matching of investment maturities with amounts due under insurance contracts.  
Management believes that disclosing the estimated fair value of all assets without a corresponding revaluation of all liabilities associated with insurance 
contracts can be misinterpreted.  The aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the actual value of the Company.

The following summarizes the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair value of financial instruments. 

Limited partnerships and limited liability corporations are reported under the equity method of accounting.  The carrying value of the limited partnerships 
and limited liability corporations is assumed to approximate its fair value.  The fair value of mortgage loans is estimated through the use of discounted cash 
flow techniques using interest rates currently being offered for similar loans to borrowers with similar credit ratings. Mortgage loans with similar charac-
teristics are aggregated for purposes of this analysis.  Deposit-type annuity contracts with defined maturities and policyholder funds on deposit liabilities 
are valued using discounted cash flow techniques based upon interest rates currently being offered by the Company for similar contracts with maturities 
consistent with the contracts being valued.  Deposit-type annuity contracts with no defined maturities are valued using discounted cash flow techniques 
based upon a risk free interest rate, adjusted for Company specific non-performance risk and a non-stochastic process margin or the amount payable on 
demand at the reporting date.  Other assets and liabilities considered financial instruments such as premium and accounts receivable, accrued investment 
income and cash are generally of a short-term nature and their carrying values are deemed to approximate fair value.

(in millions) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Financial Instrument Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Investments in limited partnerships and limited liability corporations $    6.5 $    6.5 $    7.6 $    7.6

Mortgage loans held for investment 10.2 10.2 25.9 26.0

Policyholder funds on deposit 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1

Deposit-type annuity contracts 43.7 50.5 46.4 45.7
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Note 5---Mortgage Loans - Held for Investment

Mortgage loans held for investment and the related valuation reserves, if any, are as follows at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 (in millions):

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016

Commercial mortgages  $      10.1  $      25.9

Residential mortgages 0.1 -

Less:  Mortgage valuation reserves - -

     Net Mortgage Loans  $      10.2  $      25.9   

The decrease in the mortgage loan balance is due to several large mortgage loans being paid off in full during 2017. 

The Company’s mortgage loans held for investment, net of related reserves, if any, for significant states at December 31, 2017 are as follows  
(dollars in millions):

Number  Balance  % of  
portfolio

Ohio 1 $      5.9 57.8%

New York 1 4.2 41.2%

Tennessee 1 0.1 1.0%

     Total 3 $      10.2       100.0%

Note 6---Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 (in millions):

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016

Leasehold improvements $       2.9 $       3.0

Furniture and equipment 3.3 3.8

Software 12.6 12.5

  Property and equipment, at cost 18.8 19.3

Less:  Accumulated depreciation and amortization (15.5) (15.3)

     Net Property and Equipment  $       3.3  $       4.0
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Note 7---Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Policy acquisition costs deferred for amortization against future income and the related amortization charged to expense are as follows as of and for the 
years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 (in millions):

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016

Balance, January 1 $               6.4  $               25.8  
Costs deferred during the period:                
  Direct marketing costs - 0.1
  Commissions 14.0 13.4
Total costs deferred during the period 14.0 13.5
Less:  Costs amortized during the period (13.9) (32.9)
     Balance $               6.5  $               6.4

The decrease in costs amortized during 2017 is due to the 2016 write-down of $18.7 million of deferred acquisition costs related to the coinsurance agree-
ment with General Re Life Corporation (“GenRe”) described in Note 9, Reinsurance. 

No premium deficiency reserve was established at December 31, 2017 or 2016 as the sum of expected estimated losses and loss adjustment expenses, 
unamortized acquisition costs and maintenance costs did not exceed unearned premium. 

Note 8---Claim Reserves

Life and Health 
Activity in the liability for unpaid life and health claims as of and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 is summarized as follows (in millions):

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016

Balance, January 1 $         103.5         $         100.9         
     Less: reinsurance recoverables 26.5 21.7
Net balance, January 1 77.0 79.2
Incurred related to:
   Current year 108.9 101.8
   Prior years (12.8) (17.0)
Total Incurred 96.1 84.8
Paid related to:
   Current year 50.8 44.1
   Prior years 52.0 42.9
Total Paid 102.8 87.0
Net balance 70.3 77.0
     Plus: reinsurance recoverables 26.9 26.5
Total claim reserves 97.2 103.5
Total policy reserves 94.7 96.8
Total life, accident and health and annuity reserves $        191.9        $   200.3

The Company’s life and accident and health operations experienced net favorable prior year reserve development of $12.8 million for the period ended December 
31, 2017.  The medical stop loss product had favorable prior year reserve development of $13.5 million.  The following products experienced unfavorable prior 
year reserve development: supplemental life and health ($0.1 million), individual agency health ($0.2 million), and group life ($0.4 million).  The overall net 
favorable reserve development was due to better than anticipated experience for benefits and claims expense and represents the Company’s best estimates.

The Company’s life and accident and health operations experienced net favorable prior year reserve development of $17.0 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2016.  The following products had favorable prior year reserve development: medical stop loss ($16.1 million), supplemental life and health 
($1.8 million), group disability income ($0.2 million) and accidental death ($0.2 million).  The following products experienced unfavorable prior year reserve 
development: group life ($1.0 million) and individual agency home health care and long term care ($0.3 million).  The overall favorable reserve development 
was due to better than anticipated experience for benefits and claims expense and represents the Company’s best estimates.
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Effective January 1, 2017, the Company expanded its disclosure regarding short duration contact liabilities for unpaid losses and allocated loss adjustment 
expenses (‘ALAE”) by presenting development tables for incurred claims and paid claims, the average annual percentage payout of incurred claims by age 
and a reconciliation of incurred and paid claims development information to the unpaid losses and ALAE on the balance sheet. 

The incurred and paid claim tables are presented by lines of business that are considered short duration contracts.  The life and health lines of business 
presented are stop loss and group life.  The property and casualty lines of business presented are fiduciary and governmental liability and union liability. The 
tables are shown net of reinsurance and by accident year.  The incurred claims tables include incurred-but-not-reported (“IBNR”) liabilities. The incurred 
claims tables also include quantitative information about claim frequency. The years included represent the number of years for which claims incurred 
typically remain outstanding but need not exceed 10 years including the most recent report period presented.

The following is information, presented by life and health lines of business, related to incurred and paid claims development as of December 31, 2017, net of 
reinsurance, as well as cumulative claim frequency and the total of IBNR liabilities included within the net incurred claims amounts. The information about 
incurred and paid claims development for the years ended December 31, 2013 to 2016, is presented as required supplementary unaudited information.

Stop Loss 
Incurred and paid loss development for the stop loss line of business for the year ending December 31, 2017 is as follows (in millions): 

Cumulative Incurred Losses

(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)

Claim Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2013  $      41.6   $      46.7   $      40.7  $      40.1   $        39.6 

2014 52.3 64.2 47.0 42.7

2015            48.1 50.8 35.9

2016 49.0 46.4

2017 53.5

  $      218.1

Cumulative Paid Losses

(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)

Claim Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2013  $      9.9  $      34.8   $      39.6  $      39.6   $        39.6 

2014 7.8 36.8 42.1 42.5

2015            4.3 29.6 34.9

2016 7.1 40.0

2017 10.3

  $      167.3
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The total of IBNR liabilities plus expected development on reported claims by claim year for the stop loss line of business as of December 31, 2017 are as 
follows (in millions): 

        

Claim Year

2013  $        -

2014 0.2

2015 1.0

2016 6.4

2017 43.2

 $      50.8

The cumulative number of reported claims by claim year for the stop loss line of business as of December 31, 2017 is:

Claim Year

2013          389

2014 406

2015 452

2016 458

2017 192

       1,897

The following represents supplementary information about average historical claims duration for stop loss as of December 31, 2017:

Average Annual Percentage Payout of Incurred Claims by Age, Net of Reinsurance (unaudited)

Year 1 2 3 4 5

19.1% 67.2% 12.1% 0.8% 0.8%
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Group Life 
Incurred and paid losses and for the group life line of business for the year ending December 31, 2017 is as follows (in millions):  

Cumulative Incurred Losses

(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)

Claim Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2013  $      32.3  $      32.5   $      32.7  $      32.9  $        33.0

2014 34.6 34.7 35.0 35.0

2015            34.0 34.3 34.4

2016 36.3 36.4

2017 41.6

  $      180.4

Cumulative Paid Losses

(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)

Claim Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2013  $      24.2  $      32.2   $      32.6  $      32.9   $        32.9

2014 25.7 34.3 34.8 35.0

2015            25.2 33.8 34.3

2016 26.3 36.1

2017 30.8

  $      169.1

The total of IBNR liabilities plus expected development on reported claims by claim year for the group life line of business as of December 31, 2017 are as 
follows (in millions): 

Claim Year

2013  $        0.1

2014 -

2015 0.1

2016 0.3

2017 10.8

 $      11.3
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The cumulative number of reported claims by claim year for the group life line of business as of December 31, 2017 is:

Claim Year

2013 9,425

2014 9,644

2015 9,426

2016 9,275

2017 6,376

44,146

The following represents supplementary information about average historical claims duration for group life as of December 31, 2017:

Average Annual Percentage Payout of Incurred Claims by Age, Net of Reinsurance (unaudited)

Year 1 2 3 4 5

73.2% 25.3% 1.3% 0.6% 0.0%

The reconciliation of the stop loss and group life incurred and claims development information, reflected in the tables above, to the life, accident and health 
and annuities policy and claim reserves, as of December 31, 2017 is as follows (in millions):

Stop Loss Group Life Total

Cumulative incurred losses $                     218.1 $                     180.4 $                     398.5

Less: Cumulative paid losses 167.3 169.1 336.4

Net losses payable $                       50.8 $                       11.3 $                       62.1

Other lines of business claim reserves 8.2

Total life and health claim reserves $                       70.3

50



Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Property and Casualty 
Activity in the liability for unpaid property and casualty losses and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 
December 31, 2016 is summarized as follows (in millions): 

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016

Balance, January 1 $         29.7         $         22.5

     Less: reinsurance recoverables - -

Net balance, January 1 29.7 22.5

Incurred related to:

   Current year   16.6 15.7

   Prior years 2.1 (1.3)

Total Incurred 18.7 14.4

Paid related to:

   Current year 1.4 1.3

   Prior years 10.3 5.9

Total Paid 11.7 7.2

Net balance 36.7 29.7

     Plus: reinsurance recoverables - -

Total property and casualty reserves $        36.7        $   29.7

The Company’s property and casualty operations experienced unfavorable prior year reserve development of $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 
2017 and prior year reserve favorable development of $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2016. The prior year reserve development for 2017 and 
2016 is related to the professional liability lines of business. 

Increases and decreases of this nature occur as the result of claim settlements during the current year, and as additional information is received regarding 
unpaid additional claims.  Recent loss development trends are also taken into account in evaluating the overall adequacy of unpaid losses and LAE. 

The following is information, presented by property and casualty lines of business with similar pay out patterns, related to incurred and paid claims 
development as of December 31, 2017, net of reinsurance, as well as cumulative claim frequency and the total of IBNR liabilities included within the net 
incurred claims amounts. The information about incurred and paid claims development for the years ended December 31, 2013 to 2016, is presented as 
required supplementary unaudited information.
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Fiduciary and Governmental Liability

Incurred and paid losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses development by claim year for the fiduciary and governmental liability line of business, net 
of reinsurance, for the year ending December 31, 2017 is as follows (in millions): 

Cumulative Incurred Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses

(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)

Claim Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2013  $      2.2  $      1.6  $      1.0  $      0.8  $        0.6

2014 6.7 7.1 7.2 7.1

2015            8.9 7.4 8.3

2016 9.3 9.2

2017 9.1

  $      34.3

Cumulative Paid Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses

(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)

Claim Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2013 -  $      0.2   $      0.4  $      0.5   $        0.5

2014 0.4 2.4 3.9 5.0

2015            0.9 2.3 4.1

2016 0.8 2.6

2017 0.8

  $      13.0

The total of IBNR liabilities plus expected development on reported claims by claim year for the fiduciary & governmental liability line of business as of 
December 31, 2017 are as follows (in millions): 

Claim Year

2013  $        0.1

2014 2.1

2015 4.2

2016 6.6

2017 8.3

 $      21.3
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The cumulative number of reported claims by claim year for the fiduciary and governmental liability line of business as of December 31, 2017 is: 

Claim Year

2013 30

2014 112

2015 139

2016 134

2017 91

506

The following represents supplementary information about average historical claims duration for fiduciary and governmental liability as of December 31, 2017:

Average Annual Percentage Payout of Incurred Claims by Age, Net of Reinsurance (unaudited)

Year 1 2 3 4 5

7.3% 25.0% 26.0% 14.3% 0.0%

Union Liability

Incurred and paid losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses development by claim year for the union liability line of business, net of reinsurance, for 
the year ending December 31, 2017 is as follows (in millions):  

Cumulative Incurred Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses

(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)

Claim Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2013  $      1.9  $      1.7  $      1.6  $      1.5  $        1.5

2014 4.1 4.4 4.3 5.0

2015            5.6 6.0 6.1

2016 5.9 6.7

2017 7.0

  $      26.3
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Cumulative Paid Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses

(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)

Claim Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2013 -  $      0.3   $      0.7  $      1.0   $        1.1

2014 0.3 1.4 2.4 4.0

2015            0.7 2.3 3.7

2016 0.4 2.5

2017 0.6

  $      11.9

The total of IBNR liabilities plus expected development on reported claims by claim year for the union liability line of business as of December 31, 2017 are 
as follows (in millions):

Claim Year

2013  $        0.4

2014 1.0

2015 2.4

2016 4.2

2017 6.4

 $      14.4

The cumulative number of reported claims by claim year for the union liability line of business as of December 31, 2017 is: 

Claim Year

2013 84

2014 179

2015 189

2016 185

2017 177

814

The following represents supplementary information about average historical claims duration for union liability as of December 31, 2017:

Average Annual Percentage Payout of Incurred Claims by Age, Net of Reinsurance (unaudited)

Year 1 2 3 4 5

7.0% 23.8% 23.0% 26.0% 9.0%
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The reconciliation of the fiduciary and governmental liability and union liability incurred and claims development information, reflected in the tables above, to the 
property and casualty policy and claim reserves, as of December 31, 2017 is as follows (in millions):

Fiduciary and  
Governmental Liability

Union Liability Total

Cumulative incurred losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses $                       34.3 $                       26.3 $                       60.6

Less: Cumulative paid losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses 13.0 11.9 24.9

Net losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses payable $                       21.3 $                       14.4 $                       35.7

Unallocated loss adjustment expense payable 1.0

Total property and casualty reserves $                       36.7

Note 9---Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, the Company assumes risks from and cedes certain parts of its risks to other insurance companies.  The primary purpose of ceded 
reinsurance is to limit losses from large exposures.

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company of its obligations to policyholders.  To the extent that reinsuring companies are later unable to meet obligations under 
reinsurance agreements, the Company would be liable for these obligations.  The Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and attempts to limit its 
exposure to any one reinsurer. 

Union Labor Life maintains certain reinsurance agreements under excess of loss, quota share, and catastrophe coverage.  For Stop Loss contracts, the Company retains 
$1.5 million less the underlying self-insured deductible and reinsures 100% of the excess.  

Effective July 1, 2016, Union Labor Life entered into a 100% quota share reinsurance agreement on its supplemental life and health block of business with GenRe.  
Union Labor Life recognized a pre-tax loss of $0.6 million on the transaction in 2016. Union Labor Life also recorded a $17.3 million note payable at 4% to GenRe 
which will be reduced by annual principal and interest payments each July 1 of approximately $1.3 million over twenty years. The current balance of the note payable 
is approximately $16.8 million. Collateral is required under the agreement to support the note payable amount. As of December 31, 2017, the balance in the collateral 
account was $17.2 million. The amount of ceded premium and claims was $15.1 million and $9.6 million for the year ending December 31, 2017 and $8.0 million and 
$2.9 million for the year ending December 31, 2016, respectively.  Union Labor Life also received administrative expense allowances from GenRe of $3.2 million and $1.7 
million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Prior to 2015, Union Labor Life had a reinsurance arrangement with Fidelity Security Life Insurance Company (“Fidelity Security Life”) and Fidelity Security Life of New 
York whereby Union Labor Life assumed 95% and 90% of the written stop loss premium, respectively.  Effective January 1, 2015, the Fidelity Security Life treaty was 
amended and Union Labor Life assumes 80% of the stop loss premium written on Fidelity Security Life paper.  In addition, a new treaty was enacted effective January 1, 
2015 between Union Labor Life and Fidelity Security Life whereby Fidelity Security Life assumes 20% of the stop loss premium written on Union Labor Life’s paper.  

Ullico Labor Captive (“Labor Captive”) participated in a reinsurance agreement with Alterra covering policies issued November 15, 2012 and forward. Labor Captive 
assumed 60% of the first $2 million of loss per occurrence from November 15, 2012 through December 31, 2014. Effective January 1, 2015, Labor Captive increased 
its participation to 65% of the first $2 million of loss per occurrence ($1.3 million occurrence limit). This agreement covered fiduciary, governmental and union liability 
(“program policies”) produced by UCG as program administrator for Alterra and Markel. This agreement was terminated effective January 1, 2017; Labor Captive 
continues to be liable for all program policies covered by the reinsurance agreement.

Effective January 1, 2017, Labor Captive entered into a reinsurance agreement with Alterra and Markel covering program policies, produced by UCG as program administrator, 
issued January 1, 2017 and forward. Labor Captive maintains a 65% participation of the first $2 million of loss per occurrence ($1.3 million per occurrence limit).

Effective October 1, 2012, certain life insurance, individual agency and group conversion life policies issued by Union Labor Life were 100% ceded to Southern Financial 
Life Insurance Company (“SFIC”), a Louisiana domestic company. As of December 31, 2017, there was approximately $8.2 million in reserves ceded to SFIC.  As of 
December 31, 2017, SFIC has $8.5 million of collateral available to the Company for amounts recoverable from SFIC.

Effective October 1, 2012, Union Labor Life entered into a 30% modified coinsurance (“modco”) arrangement on its medical stop loss business with Canada Life 
Assurance Company.  Under this agreement, Union Labor Life will retain its liability on the policies net of the reinsured obligation.  The amount of ceded premium 
and claims was $27.1 million and $21.1 million for the year ending December 31, 2017 and $24.2 million and $16.3 million for the year ending December 31, 2016, 
respectively.  The amount of stop loss modco reserve adjustment for December 31, 2017 was a decrease of $1.9 million. The amount of stop loss modco reserve 
adjustment for December 31, 2016 was a decrease of $0.4 million.
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The effects of reinsurance on premium income and benefits and claims incurred for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows (in millions):

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016

Life, health and annuities premium income:

  Direct $      178.7 $        160.2

  Assumed 18.0 18.7

  Ceded (70.0) (57.8)

     Net premium income earned  $      126.7  $       121.1

Property and casualty premiums written:     

  Direct  $             -         $              -        

  Assumed 30.4 29.0

  Ceded - -

     Net premium income written $       30.4 $        29.0

Property and casualty premiums earned:

  Direct $             -        $              -        

  Assumed 30.0 28.6

  Ceded - -

     Net premium income earned $       30.0 $        28.6

Life, health and annuities benefits and claims incurred:

  Direct  $     134.2  $         76.2        

  Assumed 11.2 11.6

  Ceded (47.5) (38.0)

     Net benefits and claims incurred $     97.9 $       49.8

Property and casualty benefits and claims incurred:

  Direct  $            -         $             -        

  Assumed    18.7    14.4

  Ceded                        -  -

     Net benefits and claims incurred $       18.7 $      14.4
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Total amounts recoverable from reinsurers was $73.2 million and $73.3 million for the years ending December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. 

Reinsurance recoverables from reinsurers grouped by their A.M. Best rating for December 31, 2017 are as follows (in millions):

A.M. Best Rating Unpaid Losses Paid Losses Unearned Premium Other Total

A++ $41.7                       $0.1 $0.7 -          $42.5 

A+ (0.4) 5.3 - 2.1              7.0 

A 2.6 0.5 - 0.1              3.2 

A- - - - 0.5 13.2

B 12.7 - - 0.1 0.1

Not rated by A.M. Best 7.2 - - - 7.2

Total $63.8 $5.9 $0.7 $2.8          $73.2 

Reinsurance recoverables from reinsurers grouped by their A.M. Best rating for December 31, 2016 are as follows (in millions):

A.M. Best Rating Unpaid Losses Paid Losses Unearned Premium Other Total

A++ $39.6                       $ - $0.8 -          $40.4 

A+ (0.2) 3.3 - 2.5 5.6

A 6.2 0.2 - 0.1 6.5

A- 12.9 - - 0.1 13.0

B++ - - - 0.1 0.1

Not rated by A.M. Best 7.7 - - - 7.7

Total $66.2 $3.5 $0.8 $2.8          $73.3 

Certain of the Company’s reinsurance agreements require the reinsurer to set up letters of credit or trust accounts as collateral for the Company’s benefit in 
the event of insolvency. 

The following collateral is available to the Company for amounts recoverable from reinsurers as of December 31, 2017 (in millions):

Regulation 114                                 
Trust

Letters of 
Credit

Total

Southern Financial Life Insurance Company $8.5                  -    $8.5 
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The following collateral is available to the Company for amounts recoverable from reinsurers as of December 31, 2016 (in millions):

Regulation 114                                 
Trust

Letters of 
Credit

Total

Southern Financial Life Insurance Company $9.2                  -    $9.2

Note 10---Benefit Plans

Company Benefit Plans
The Company’s eligible employees are participants in the AFL-CIO Staff Retirement Plan (“the Plan”), a multiemployer defined benefit plan with a fiscal year 
end of June 30. The Company makes monthly contributions to the Plan.  The Plan records the present value of retirement incentive contributions using a 
discount rate of 7.5%.  The Company’s year-to-date contributions to the Plan represented more than 5% of all participating employer’s total contributions for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017.

The financial health of a multiemployer plan is indicated by the zone status, as defined by the Pension Protection Act of 2006, which represents the funded 
status of the plan as certified by the plan’s actuary.  Plans in the red zone are less than 65% funded, the yellow zone are between 65% and 80% funded and 
green zone are at least 80% funded.

The following information details the Company’s participation in the Plan:

Employer Identification Number/Pension Plan Number:   53-0228172-001

Pension Protection Act Zone Status as of June 30, 2017:  Green

Company Contributions for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016: $3.8 million and $17.7 million

The 2016 contribution amount included a supplemental contribution of $12.0 million.

The Plan’s investment strategy includes investing in securities which provide long-term appreciation and revenue generation.  The strategy also includes 
investments in hedge funds in order to attain above average rates of returns and long-term capital growth.

The Company also sponsors an unfunded non-qualified defined benefit plan and a defined contribution savings and investment plan, as well as other 
postretirement health and life insurance benefits to eligible retirees.  The Company made matching contributions to its defined contribution savings and 
investment plan of $0.7 million and $0.8 million for the years ending December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
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Information with respect to the Company’s defined benefit plan and asset activity and defined benefit plan obligation is as follows (in millions): 

Obligations and Funded Status
Non-qualified  

Pension Benefits
Postretirement  

Benefits

2017 2016 2017 2016

Change in benefits obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $      12.6  $        11.9  $      5.5  $      7.1 

Service cost 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

Interest cost 0.5 0.5 0.2 0.2

Plan amendments - - - (1.8)

Actuarial loss/(gain) 0.9 0.5 (0.1) 0.3

Benefits paid (0.5) (0.5) (0.3) (0.4)

Benefit obligation at end of year $      13.7 $      12.6 $      5.4 $      5.5 

Non-qualified  
Pension Benefits

Postretirement  
Benefits

2017 2016 2017 2016

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets beginning of year  $      -   $      -   $      -   $      -  

Market adjustment -  -  -  -  

Actual return on plan assets              -              -              -  -  

Employer contribution 0.5 0.5 0.3  0.4  

Benefits paid (0.5) (0.5)   (0.3)    (0.4)

Administrative expenses -  -  -  -  

Transfer to other plan - - - -

Fair value of plan assets end of year  $      -   $      -   $      -   $      -  

Information for the Company’s non-qualified pension and other postretirement benefit plans with accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets is 
as follows (in millions):

Non-qualified Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2017 2016 2017 2016

Accumulated benefit obligation  $      13.6  $      12.5   $      -  $      -

Benefit obligation 13.7 12.6 5.4 5.5

Fair value of assets - - - -

Funded status $      (13.7) $      (12.6) $      (5.4) $      (5.5) 

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of:

Current liabilities (0.5) (0.5) (0.4) (0.4)

Non-current liabilities (13.2) (12.1) (5.0) (5.1)
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Non-qualified Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2017 2016 2017 2016

Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive  
Income consist of:

Net actuarial loss/(gain)  $      3.3  $      2.6  $       2.8  $       3.1

Prior service cost/(credit) (0.2) (0.2) (12.1) (14.2)

Net amount recognized $      3.1 $      2.4  $      (9.3)  $     (11.1)

The other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income are as follows (in millions): 

Non-qualified Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2017 2016 2017 2016

New prior service cost/(credit)  $             -   $         -   $         -  $       (1.8) 

New net loss/(gain)     0.9 0.5 (0.1) 0.3

Amortization of prior service credit/(cost) - 0.1 2.0 2.0

Amortization of net gain/(loss) (0.3) (0.2) (0.2) (0.3)

Total recognized in other comprehensive income  $          0.6  $      0.4  $      1.7  $          0.2 

Total recognized in other comprehensive income and net periodic 
benefit cost

 $         1.5  $      1.2  $      0.2  $      (1.2 )

The components of net periodic benefit cost are as follows (in millions):

Non-qualified  
Pension Benefits

Postretirement Benefits

2017 2016 2017 2016

Service cost  $      0.2   $      0.2   $        0.1  $       0.1 

Interest cost 0.5 0.5 0.2 0.2

Expected return on plan assets - - - -

Amortization of prior service cost - (0.1) (2.0) (2.0)

Amortization of net loss/(gain) 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

Net periodic benefit cost  $      0.9  $      0.8  $      (1.5)  $       (1.4) 

Information regarding the estimated amortization amounts for the year ended December 31, 2017 is as follows (in millions):

Non-qualified  
Pension Benefits

Postretirement Benefits

Amortization of prior service cost/(credit) $          -      $      (2.0)

Amortization of net loss/(gain) 0.3                           0.2

Total $      0.3      $      (1.8)
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The rate assumptions utilized as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 are as follows:

Non-qualified Pension 
Benefits

Postretirement  
Benefits

2017 2016 2017 2016

Discount Rate 4.1% 4.3% 3.5% 4.0%

Rate of compensation increase 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%

The Company uses December 31 as the measurement date for its non-qualified pension and other postretirement benefit plans.

For postretirement health benefit measurement purposes, a 7.0% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed 
for the year ending December 31, 2017.  The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5.0% until 2021 and remain at that level thereafter. 

Assumed health care cost trend rates may have a significant effect on the amounts reported for health care plans. A one-percentage-point change in the 
assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

1 Percentage Point Increase        1 Percentage Point Decrease

Effect on Total of Service and Interest Cost  
for year ended December 31, 2017

$0.1 million $(0.1) million

Effect on Benefit Obligation as of  
December 31, 2017

$0.4 million $(0.3) million

As of December 31, 2017, the following benefit payments, which reflect expected future services, are expected to be paid from the benefit plans (in millions).  
These benefit payments are calculated using the same rate assumptions previously noted.

Non-qualified pension  
Benefits

Postretirement 
 Benefits

2018 $          0.5 $          0.4

2019 0.5 0.4

2020 0.6 0.3

2021 0.6 0.3

2022 0.7 0.3

2023-2027 3.7 1.6
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Note 11 --- Income Taxes

The Company files a consolidated life-nonlife federal income tax return including all eligible subsidiaries.  The components of income tax (expense)/benefit 
are as follows (in millions):

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016

Federal Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit

  Current $          (1.7) $          (2.2)

  Deferred (2.1) 20.6

    Federal income tax expense (3.8) 18.4

State Income Tax Expense

  Current  (0.1)  - 

  Deferred  -  -

    State income tax expense - -

Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit $          (3.9) 18.4

The reconciliation of federal taxes computed at the statutory rate of 35% to the income tax (expense)/benefit is as follows (in millions):

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Federal income tax (expense)/benefit at statutory rate $          (5.0) $          (2.6)

Tax rate change (23.7) -

Valuation allowance change 24.9 21.0

     Federal Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit $          (3.8) $          18.4

Financial results for the year ended December 31, 2017 reflect provisional amounts related to the December 22, 2017 enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act 
(“Tax Act”).  These provisional estimates are based on the Company’s initial analysis and current interpretation of the legislation.  Given the complexity of 
the legislation, anticipated guidance from the U.S. Treasury, and the potential for additional guidance from the Securities and Exchange Commission or the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board, these estimates may be adjusted during 2018.
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The tax effects of items comprising the Company’s net federal deferred income tax asset are as follows at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016  
(in millions):

December 31, 
2017

  December  31, 
2016

Federal Deferred Tax Asset

   Insurance reserves $          1.6 $          2.9

   Pension and postretirement benefits 4.0 6.3

   Deferred real estate loss 0.4 1.3

   Tax effect of net operating loss carryforwards 33.8 57.2

   Tax credit carryover - 0.2

   Uncollectible reinsurance/bad debt 0.8 1.8

   Other 0.6 1.4

   Valuation allowance (18.4) (43.3)

      Subtotal Federal deferred tax asset 22.8 27.8

Federal Deferred Tax Liability

   Deferred policy acquisition costs and ceding commissions 1.1 1.5

   Developed software and excess depreciation 0.3 0.5

   Limited partnership investments 1.6 2.6

   Unrealized capital gains and investments 2.1 2.9

      Subtotal Federal deferred tax liability 5.1 7.5

Net Federal Deferred Tax Asset $          17.7 $          20.3

The deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities listed in the table above relate to temporary differences between the Company’s accounting and tax 
carrying values.  The net deferred tax asset at December 31, 2017 reflects a $23.7 million reduction as a result of the Tax Act.  The new tax law reduces the 
Company’s corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21% effective January 1, 2018.  As a result, the Company reduced its net deferred tax assets at December 
31, 2017 and recorded an additional deferred tax expense of $23.7 million increasing the effective tax rate for the year ending December 31, 2017. 

As of December 31, 2017, the Company has concluded that it is more likely than not that some of the benefit from net operating loss carryforwards and other 
deferred tax assets may not be realized in the foreseeable future. Based on this assessment, the Company has recorded a partial valuation allowance of 
$18.4 million against the deferred tax asset, in accordance with ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes. 

The $17.7 million of net deferred tax asset at December 31, 2017 results from net positive evidence that the Company has in support of the deferred tax 
asset.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company has federal regular-tax net operating loss carry forwards of $161.0 million, which will be used to offset future taxable 
income.  Regular tax net operating loss carry forwards consist of $161.0 million for the non-life companies which start to expire in 2027.    

The Company paid $1.9 million and $2.0 million of federal income tax as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

There are no penalties on income taxes paid or accrued for December 31, 2017 or 2016.   There are no material unrecognized tax benefits within the mean-
ing of ASC 740-10-65-2 and management does not expect any significant increase or decrease within the following 12 months.  The Company recognizes 
interest and penalties accrued, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense. Tax years that remain open and subject to 
examination by the Internal Revenue Service are calendar years 2014 and forward.   
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Note 12---Commitments and Contingencies 

Leases
The Company leases office space, data processing and copier equipment and certain other equipment under operating leases expiring on various dates 
between 2018 and 2025.  Most of the leases contain renewal and purchase options based on prevailing fair market values.  Lease expense totaled $3.1 
million and $3.2 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Aggregate future minimum rent payments required under non-cancelable operating leases in effect at December 31, 2017 is summarized as follows (in 
millions):

Year ending  
December 31

Minimum Lease Payments

2018 $          3.5

2019 2.1

2020 1.1

2021 1.0

2022 0.9

Thereafter 2.1

Total $        10.7

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk
The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet its financing needs.  These financial 
instruments include investment commitments related to separate account mortgage loans.  These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit 
and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheets.

At December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company had combined outstanding commitments to fund mortgage loans for Union Labor Life for the 
benefit of Separate Account J and W1 of approximately $1.3 billion and $1.2 billion, respectively.  

Union Labor Life, on behalf of Separate Account J, executed a $100.0 million line of credit with BMO Harris Bank, effective August, 2016.  The line of credit is 
solely secured by the assets of Separate Account J.  The unused line of credit was $100.0 million as of December 31, 2017. 

Union Labor Life, on behalf of Separate Account W1, executed a $10.0 million line of credit with the Bank of Labor, effective May, 2016.  The line of credit is 
solely secured by the assets of Separate Account W1.  The unused line of credit was $10.0 million as of December 31, 2017. 

Effective January 1, 2017, Union Labor Life entered into a revolving credit facility with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters Voluntary Employee 
Benefits Trust for a maximum amount of $2.0 million. There have been no draws on the credit facility in 2017. The credit facility is in place through 
December 31, 2017.  Effective January 1, 2018, the credit facility was renewed through December 31, 2018.

FDIC Limit
The Company maintains its own funds in bank accounts with balances in excess of the FDIC insurance limit.

Audits, Investigations, Litigation and Unasserted Claims
Ullico and its subsidiaries are involved in legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of their business. In the opinion of management, such 
investigations, litigation, and unasserted claims will not have a material impact on the financial condition, results of income, or cash flow of the Company.
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On March 10, 2016, the Receiver of Ullico Casualty Company (“Ullico Casualty”) in Liquidation filed a petition against Ullico Inc. requesting the Chancery 
Court of Delaware to compel Ullico Inc. to provide an accounting of its implementation of a 2000 Consolidated Tax Agreement among the Company’s 
affiliates for tax year 2012 and the pre-receivership 2013 tax period and, in the event any amounts are due to the Receiver for such periods, to compel 
the Company to turn over such amounts. The Company advised the Receiver of the Company’s position that no amount is due under the Agreement. The 
Receiver subsequently agreed to dismiss the petition, but during negotiations questioned the disposition prior to receivership of a tax recoverable carried 
on the financial statements as an asset of Ullico Casualty.  The asset was offset against liabilities of Ullico Casualty to the Company and its affiliates.  The 
Company and the Receiver agreed to settle this dispute by the payment of $0.5 million from the Company to the Receiver.  The amount was paid in October 
2017 in conjunction with the execution by the parties of a settlement agreement resolving all tax issues and the dismissal with prejudice of the Receiver’s 
petition.  The $0.5 million paid is included in the other income category within the consolidated statements of income. 

In February 2016, Republic Underwriters Insurance Company (“Republic”) filed suit against Ullico Casualty Group, Inc. (now Ullico Casualty Group, LLC), 
alleging that UCG breached a 2011 General Agency Agreement pertaining to West Virginia and California worker’s compensation programs in which Republic 
served as a fronting carrier for Ullico Casualty Company (now in liquidation).  Republic and UCG signed a tolling agreement that provided for dismissal of 
the lawsuit without prejudice, accompanied by the tolling of applicable statutes of limitations, which permitted the parties to exchange information and 
explore a resolution without incurring litigation expenses. The parties have reached a settlement of the dispute and management has recorded an accrual in 
accounts payable and other liabilities of $0.4 million to reflect the settlement expense. The $0.4 million settlement expense is included in the sales, general 
and administrative expense category within the consolidated statements of income.  

Guarantees
The Company and, in certain instances, its subsidiary, Union Labor Life, are party to several guaranty agreements pursuant to which the performance of a 
former subsidiary, Ullico Casualty under certain reinsurance agreements is guaranteed.

Guarantees to State National Insurance Company

• Effective February 1, 2004, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share reinsurance agreement 
dated February 1, 2004 with State National Insurance Company (“SNIC”) for SNIC Fiduciary and Union Liability policies issued from 2004 to 2008.  The 
guaranty obligates the Company to hold SNIC harmless with respect to all liabilities of Ullico Casualty under the reinsurance agreement, including the 
obligation to make payments to SNIC for any payments that Ullico Casualty is unable to make.  Collateral is required under the reinsurance agreement at 
110% of unearned premium and 150% of outstanding loss reserves.  The guaranty remains in force as long as Ullico Casualty has outstanding obliga-
tions under the reinsurance agreement. 

• Effective January 1, 2009, the Company and Union Labor Life guaranteed the performance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share 
reinsurance agreement dated January 1, 2009 with SNIC for SNIC Workers’ Compensation policies issued from 2009 to 2012.  The guaranty obligates 
the Company to hold SNIC harmless with respect to all liabilities of Ullico Casualty under the reinsurance agreement, including the obligation to make 
payments to SNIC for any payments that Ullico Casualty is unable to make. Collateral is required under the reinsurance agreement at 150% of unearned 
premium and outstanding loss reserves.  The guaranty remains in force as long as Ullico Casualty has outstanding obligations under the reinsurance 
agreement. 

• Effective January 1, 2012, the Company and Union Labor Life guaranteed the performance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share 
reinsurance agreement dated January 1, 2012 with SNIC for SNIC Fiduciary and Union Liability policies.  The guaranty obligates the Company and Union 
Labor Life, jointly and severally, to hold SNIC harmless with respect to all liabilities of Ullico Casualty under the reinsurance agreement, including the 
obligation to make payments to SNIC for any payments that Ullico Casualty is unable to make. Collateral is required under the reinsurance agreement at 
200% of unearned premium and outstanding loss reserves. The guaranty remains in force as long as Ullico Casualty has outstanding obligations under 
the reinsurance agreement.

• To satisfy certain of the guaranty obligations described above, effective April 5, 2013, the Company and Union Labor Life entered into a security fund 
agreement with SNIC pursuant to which Union Labor Life deposited $13.6 million into a security fund account for the benefit of SNIC to provide additional 
required collateral under the reinsurance agreements entered into by SNIC and Ullico Casualty dated February 1, 2004, January 1, 2009 and January 1, 
2012, as described above. By 2015, SNIC had released all funds in the account and at December 31, 2017, no Union Labor Life funds were held by SNIC. 

At December 31, 2017, SNIC reported a net amount reinsurance recoverable from Ullico Casualty of $11.6 million in its statutory filings. Ullico Casualty’s 
funds on deposit in a security fund account were $44.5 million at December 31, 2017. Thus, management believes that there is no exposure to the Company’s 
guarantee at December 31, 2017.
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Guaranty to Hudson Insurance Company
•  Effective October 1, 2007, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share reinsurance agreement 

dated October 1, 2007 with Hudson Insurance Company (“Hudson”) for Hudson Fiduciary and Union Liability policies issued from 2007 to 2012 that Ullico 
Casualty reinsured.  The guaranty provides that the Company will guarantee the performance by Ullico Casualty of its liabilities under the reinsurance 
agreement, including all payment and collateral obligations. Collateral is required under the reinsurance agreement at 100% of unearned premium and 
outstanding loss reserves as determined by Hudson.  The guaranty provides that it will remain in force as long as Ullico Casualty has outstanding obliga-
tions under the reinsurance agreement. At December 31, 2017, Hudson reported a net amount reinsurance recoverable from Ullico Casualty of $3.0 million 
in its statutory filings. Ullico Casualty’s funds on deposit, for the benefit of Hudson, to secure these obligations were $10.8 million. Thus, management 
believes that there is no exposure to the Company’s guaranty at December 31, 2017.

The maximum potential amount of future payments under the above guaranties is the obligations incurred by Ullico Casualty under the related reinsurance 
agreements.   The current estimate of this amount is the loss reserves as of December 31, 2017.   Loss reserves are necessarily based upon assumptions 
and estimates and while management believes the amount is adequate, the ultimate liability may be in excess of or less than the amount estimated. The 
collateral accounts described above are funded with investment grade bonds.  The Company believes there is adequate collateral in the collateral accounts 
to fund the reinsurance agreement obligations. In addition to the guaranties described above that relate to reinsurance obligations of Ullico Casualty in 
receivership, the Company is also party to certain guaranties that relate to the professional liability program of its subsidiary UCG, as described below.

  Guaranties to Alterra America Insurance Company and Markel American Insurance Company
•  Effective November 15, 2012, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of Labor Captive under a quota share reinsurance agreement 

with Alterra with respect to certain liability policies issued on Alterra paper.  The guaranty agreement and quota share reinsurance agreement have been 
subsequently amended and effective December 1, 2015, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of Labor Captive under a second 
amended and restated quota share reinsurance agreement with Alterra effective November 15, 2012, with respect to Union Liability, Fiduciary Liability, 
Governmental Liability, and Excess Fiduciary Liability policies issued on Alterra paper.  The second amended and restated guaranty provides that the 
Company will guarantee any payments arising out of or relating to the obligations and liabilities of Labor Captive arising from the second amended and 
restated quota share reinsurance agreement that Labor Captive is unwilling or unable to make, including collateral obligations.  Collateral is required 
under the reinsurance agreement at 100% of: (a) reserves for unearned premiums, if any; (b) the unearned portions of any claims handling expenses; 
and (c) reserves for losses incurred but not reported and losses reported but unpaid. The second amended and restated guaranty also provides that: (1) 
the Company will contribute additional funds to Labor Captive if required for Labor Captive to maintain adequate capital pursuant to the reinsurance 
agreement; (2) the Company will indemnify and hold Alterra harmless with respect to any and all liabilities or losses relating to the obligations of Labor 
Captive arising from the reinsurance agreement; (3) the Company guarantees the performance and obligations of UCG, which is the managing general 
agent for the Alterra program, to indemnify and hold Alterra harmless as provided in a third amended and restated program administration agreement 
effective November 15, 2012, with Alterra and Labor Captive.  The quota share reinsurance agreement and the program administration agreements were 
amended to include Alterra’s affiliate, Markel, in the Alterra program to facilitate offering the program in all states. The parties terminated the reinsur-
ance agreement on a run-off basis and the program administration agreement effective January 1, 2017.   The Company’s guaranty obligations remain 
in full force and effect as long as Labor Captive has any obligations under the reinsurance agreement or UCG has any obligations to indemnify Alterra 
under the program administrator agreement. 

• Effective March 1, 2014, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of UCG, which is the managing general agent for the Alterra pro-
gram, to indemnify and hold Markel harmless as provided in the program administration agreement, effective March 1, 2014, with Markel and UCG.  The 
Company’s guaranty obligations remain in full force and effect as long as UCG has any obligations to indemnify Markel under the program administrator 
agreement.  The Company’s obligations to Markel under the guaranty are identical to its obligations to Alterra under the second amended and restated 
guaranty referred to above.

• Effective January 1, 2017, the Company agreed to (1) guarantee the performance and obligations of Labor Captive under a quota share reinsurance 
agreement with Alterra and Markel effective January 1, 2017; (2) indemnify and hold Alterra and Markel harmless with respect to any and all liabilities or 
losses relating to the obligations of  Labor Captive arising from the reinsurance agreement; and (3) guarantee the performance and obligations of UCG, 
which is the managing general agent for the Markel program, to indemnify and hold Alterra and Markel harmless as provided in a program administra-
tion agreement effective January 1, 2017, with Alterra, Markel and Labor Captive.   The specific terms of this guaranty are identical to those outlined in 
the Guaranty and Indemnification Agreement between the parties effective November 12, 2012 and described in detail above. The Company’s guaranty 
obligations remain in full force and effect as long as Labor Captive has any obligations under the reinsurance agreement or UCG has any obligations to 
indemnify Alterra and Markel under the program administrator agreement. 

The collateral required by Alterra and Markel at December 31, 2017 in connection with the reinsurance agreements was $39.6 million. At December 31, 2017, 
$39.8 million was on deposit in a trust account for the benefit of Alterra and Markel. Management believes that there is no exposure at December 31, 2017 to 
the Company’s guaranties of the reinsurance obligations described above.
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Note 13---Capital

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s insurance subsidiary had statutory capital and surplus of $94.2 million and $89.2 million, respectively, de-
termined in accordance with statutory accounting practices utilized in filings with insurance regulatory authorities.  For the year ending December 31, 2017 
and 2016, the Company’s insurance subsidiaries had combined statutory net income of $7.2 million and $11.0 million, respectively. Access to the capital 
and surplus within these insurance subsidiaries is restricted by state regulations.  The maximum amount that Union Labor Life could pay to Ullico during 
2018 on a statutory basis without approval from the Maryland Insurance Administration is approximately $8.9 million.

Regulatory risk-based capital rules require a specified level of capital depending on the types and quality of investments held, the types of business written 
and the types of liabilities maintained. Depending on the ratio of an insurance company’s surplus to its risk-based capital, the insurance company could be 
subject to various regulatory actions ranging from increased scrutiny to conservatorship. The Company’s insurance subsidiaries risk-based capital ratios at 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 are significantly above the regulatory action levels.

In the first quarter of 2017, all Class B shareholders converted their Class B common stock to Class A common stock.  As a result, there is no outstanding 
Class B common stock as of December 31, 2017.

Note 14---Related Party Transactions

James E. Tait, a former member of the Company’s Board of Directors, was party to a consulting agreement with the Company.  Mr. Tait was paid $80,000 and 
$120,000 for services rendered for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.  The consulting agreement with Mr. Tait was terminated effective August 31, 
2017.  

In November of 2014, UIA entered into an agreement with Acropolis Investment Management, LLC (“Acropolis”), pursuant to which UIA and Acropolis, doing 
business as Ullico Retirement Solutions, offer investment adviser and investment management services to sponsors and fiduciaries of defined contribution 
retirement plans in the labor union market place.  Christopher B. Lissner, a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, is President of Acropolis.   On October 
of 2015, the Board of Trustees of the Ullico Inc. 401(k) Plan and Trust voted to retain Acropolis as the investment advisor for the Plan effective January 1, 2016.
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